
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 6, 2015 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the September 15, 2015 
Board of City Commission Regular Meeting 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider confirmation of special assessments for Street 
Improvement District #177, #178, #179, #181, #182, #185, #186, 
#189, #190, #191, #192, #193 and #195.   

2. Consider Change Order for Street Improvement District 200 Project 
2015-09. 

3. Consider agreement with NDDOT for design of Twin City Drive and 
Main Street Traffic Signal. 

4. Consider recommendations for Mandan Architectural Review 
Commission appointments. 

5. Consider the following reassessments: 
i. Jack & Mary Ann Paul 
ii. Craig Ostafin  

6. Consider approval of Special Sunday Openings for the Mandan 
Moose #425 on October 11, 2015 & October 25, 2015. 

7. Consider approval of an assignment and consent agreement for the 
Storefront Improvement Project at 112 Second Ave NW 

8. Informational item, Change Order #3 for Downtown Street 
Improvement District #199. 

9. Consider agreement with NDDOT for design of Highway 6 and 19th 
St. turn lane and signing improvements.  

10. Consider CPM agreement with NDDOT for Memorial Highway 
traffic signals. 

11. Consider for approval lots splits in West Hills Estates First Addition. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 6, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 
12. Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle 

Corporation for the Water Meter Improvements Project. 
13. Consider budget transfer from 2016 Street Department Capital 

Outlay budget to 2015 budget. 
14. Consider a reduction in the structure value for the 2015 year for 

Otis R. Patton Jr. property. 
15. Acting as Board of Adjustment, consider request to grant a variance 

to allow a garage to be located in front of the primary structure on 
Lot 1, Block 1, Patience Subdivision. 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider Visitors Committee recommendation for updated visitor 
signage and issuance of a request for proposals 

2. Consider Bismarck-Mandan Musicians Association request 
changing the name of the Mandan Band Shell to the “Vern Cermak 
Band Shell”. 

3. Presentation of Old Red Trail project planning and consider 
decisions needed as part of the NDDOT required CATEX document 
to move forward with project. 

 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Second and Final Passage of Ordinance No. 1219 adding language 
to Chapters 18 and 24 of the New Mandan Code of Ordinances 
related to offenses and traffic violations. 

2. First consideration of Ordinance 1221 renaming street in Lakewood 
8th Addition 

3. First consideration of Ordinance 1204 adding a section on graffiti to 
Chapter 16 Nuisances. 

4. First consideration of Ordinance 1220 adding prohibition against 
incendiary balloons, sky lanterns and celebration lanterns in 
Chapter 10 Fire Prevention and Protection, 
 

K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. October 13, 2015 – Hanna:Keelan Associates Housing Demand 
Study – Tom Baker Meeting Room, (Bismarck) – 5:15 p.m. 

2. October 20, 2015 
3. November 3, 2015 
4. November 17, 2015 – 4 p.m. Service Awards 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 6, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 
Departmental planning meeting will be held the Monday prior to the Commission meeting, all 
Commissioners are invited, noon, Veterans’ Conference Room. Please notify the city 
administrator by 8:30 a.m. that Monday if you plan on attending. If more than two commissioners 
plan on attending, proper public notice must be given. 

 
 
 
 
 



(Page intentionally left blank) 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 1 of 10 

 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on September 

15, 2015 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Braun, and Laber (via 

teleconference call).  Department Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police 

Chief Bullinger, City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public 

Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development Communications Director 

Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Planner Decker, and Building Official 

Lalim. Absent: Assessor Shaw. 

 

2.          Presentation of retirement award to Randy Frohlich, Utility Operator III: 

On behalf of the City of Mandan, Mayor Van Beek congratulated Randy Frohlich for his 

37 years of dedicated service to the City of Mandan.   

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the 

Agenda. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone interested to 

speak for or against any items on the Agenda to come forward.  A second announcement 

was made to come forward to speak.  Hearing none, this portion of the Public 

Communications was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission 

September 1, 2015 regular meeting.  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the minutes 

as presented. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

1.         Public Hearing scheduled at 6:00 p.m. to review and discuss the final 2016 

Budget. (See Ordinances and Resolutions #1 and #2). At 6:05 p.m. Mayor Van Beek 

called for the Public Hearing to review and discuss the final 2016 Budget.  Mayor Van 

Beek invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against any of the  items on the 

2016 Budget.   

 

Wayne Papke, Mandan resident, came forward and extended a thank you to the City 

Commission for their work on the 2016 Budget.  He noted that he does not see disclosed 

to the public that the budget is up $3.9 million, which is a 12.57% increase over the 2015 

budget.  That is the bottom line of costs assessed to the tax payers and that information 

has not been disclosed. He felt that there were fancy ways of hiding it. He indicated he 

said it that way because he doesn’t like it. He commented that since there are many more 

units now that should be taking the property taxes down.  He questioned whether the 

Commission doesn’t want the public to know that the budget is up $3.9 million or 

12.57%.  Mr. Papke was curious as to why the City wanted to hide that number. He 

pointed out that on the General Fund Levy, it is his opinion that it was over levied by 

about $800,000 by the tax incentives that the City Commission gave away over the last 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 2 of 10 

three years.  As a result, the City had about a 24% higher levy than was needed because 

of those discretionary tax incentives that were given out.  He said he is pointing that out 

for future reference for if the tax incentive matter ever comes back for discussion.  

 

Commissioner Rohr commented in response to Wayne Papke’s inquiries during the 

public hearing session, he explained that there have been a number of new residents, new 

businesses, new streets, and new infrastructure which requires additional resources and 

monies so the equation Mr. Papke presented is lacking the fact that the growth requires 

additional funds that go along with that. That increase would be there regardless. Those 

can’t be avoided.   

 

Finance Director Welch summarized the numbers that were presented at the first 

introduction on August 18, 2015 and it was fully reported in the Bismarck Tribune on 

September 1, 2015.  The information is on the City’s website as advertised.  The increase 

in the budget includes major highlights such as increases of $555,550 in capital outlay 

and that dollar amount fluctuates on a year-to-year basis due to different departments 

having different capital outlay requests.  He also noted that there was an increase in the 

Operations and Maintenance costs of about $215,250; increase in debt service of about 

$127,100, and an increase of approximately $79,872 in health insurance; but there are 

also requests for personnel of $69,457. The largest increase from 2015 to 2016 is the $1.9 

million the City is going to collect from a new three-quarter-cent special sales tax for the 

Park District to build a new sports complex and ball fields. The City will then deposit the 

special tax revenue with the Bank of North Dakota according to the Escrow Agreement. 

That expenditure is the result of the collection of a whole new revenue source.   

 

Commissioner Tibke asked Director Welch how many public noticed committee 

meetings, (for the budget), did the city hold? He pointed out that state law only requires 

one public meeting on the budget.  Commissioner Tibke asked for a clarification as to 

whether the Budget Committee meetings where they met with all the departments and 

portfolio holders individually were public noticed. Director Welch explained that for 

every department and portfolio budget request, the public budget meetings were noticed. 

Commissioner Tibke commented that she felt we were very transparent and open with the 

budgeting process. Anyone can come to the meetings and anyone can have input. Maybe 

they don’t agree with how they budgeted, or those sorts of things. But as far as being an 

open book and transparent, she believes the City is.  

 

Mayor Van Beek announced once again that this is a public hearing and invited anyone to 

come forward to speak for or against any of the items on the 2016 Budget.  A final 

announcement was made by Mayor Van Beek to come forward to speak for or against 

any of the items on the 2016 Budget.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing 

was closed.  

 

F.         BIDS: 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider approval of monthly bills. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 3 of 10 

2.         Consider approval of replat of Lot 6, Block 2 of Replat of Bridgeview Bay 

Addition 

3.         Consider AE2S Engineering Agreement for Services for the FEMA approved 

Emergency Generator Project. 

4.         Consider Recycling Contract and Transfer Station Lease with Dakota Sanitation, 

Inc. for single stream curbside recycling in Mandan. 

5.         Consider Agreement with AE2S for GIS (Geographic Information System) project 

services. 

6.         Consider Increasing the Parking Enforcement Officer Position from Three 

Quarter Time to Full Time.   

7.         Consider approval of plat for Lot 1, Block 1, Prairie Rose Addition 

8.         Consider proclaiming October 2, 2015 as Cajun Cowboy Fais Do Do Day in the 

City of Mandan. 

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Commissioner 

Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

H.        OLD BUSINESS: 

 

I.          NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Consider future of 911 and dispatching services for the City of Mandan: 

Fire Chief Nardello and Police Chief Bullinger presented a recommendation for services 

of 911 dispatching.  Chief Nardello provided a summary of the history of the dispatch 

center systems that have been utilized including the Bismarck Computer Aided Dispatch 

(CAD) system.  He stated that the Mandan Fire and Police Chiefs have been reviewing 

options for dispatching services for over a year. They are now coming forward with a 

formal recommendation to pursue a consolidated dispatch service system with 

Bismarck/Burleigh Combined Communications Center (BBCCC) and a request to allow 

the City of Mandan personnel to work on an acceptable Memorandum of Understanding.  

Both Chief Nardello and Chief Bullinger believe that the 911 dispatching service, for 

both the community and emergency responders, will improve through the BBCCC and 

that the City of Mandan will see a considerable cost savings if the consolidation is 

approved.   

 

Chief Nardello went over some of the concerns/questions that have been encountered:   

     (1) Will Mandan have equal voice with Bismarck/Burleigh? Chief Nardello stated that 

both he and Chief Bullinger have always had a professional, non-territorial relationship 

with Bismarck / Burleigh entities and truly believe that Mandan would be an equal 

partner with such a merger.   

     (2) What will the Center be named?  The name will be determined at a later date. One 

suggestion would be to have the employees of the center select the new name.  

     (3) Will Bismarck “slam” Mandan with a huge cost for future infrastructure needs?  

Director Dannenfelzer, of Bismarck/Burleigh Combined Communications Center, has 

indicated that past planning on future needs has been built into the Bismarck-Burleigh 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 4 of 10 

budget process and that Mandan would not be expected to make a one-time large “catch-

up” contribution. The proposed budget includes 15% capital outlay reserve to anticipate 

future needs. 

     (4) Can Bismarck cancel an agreement with Mandan at any time leaving Mandan with 

no dispatch center?  The preliminary Memorandum of Understanding have included a 30-

year agreement with any party opting out after a minimum of a one-year notice but no 

party may opt out for five (5) years so that we can give the merged Combined 

Communications Center a chance.  Emergency responders will experience no change 

with radio operations as inner operability will be maintained as it is today and most likely 

improve by adding additional users such as the Bismarck/Burleigh Communications 

Center and possibility the ND State Radio.  Radios will remain programmed the same as 

they are today so that all law enforcement agencies can communicate as they do today. 

All Fire and EMS agencies can communicate as they do today. Emergency Responders 

will not need to change their record management software as the SunGard CAD System 

of the Bismarck/Burleigh Communications Center will integrate with all records 

management systems such as it did with ours successfully over a year ago.  Morton 

dispatchers will have an opportunity to work at the Bismarck/Burleigh Center with no 

application process and possibly have better benefits than they are currently receiving.   

 

Chief Nardello stated that both he and Chief Bullinger believe the combined center will 

improve services for the responders and the residents of Mandan; while at the same time 

reducing the budget. They are confident that they can work on a Memorandum of 

Understanding with the Bismarck/Burleigh Communications Center that will be 

acceptable by all parties and that Mandan will receive equal representation and voice in 

such a merger. It is their recommendation that the City Commission consolidate with 

Bismarck/Burleigh Combined Communications Center for communication services and 

to allow Mandan’s City staff to develop an acceptable Memorandum of Understanding 

that will be brought back for the City Commission for final consideration.  Should the 

City Commission vote to approve this merger with Bismarck/Burleigh Communications 

Center, Morton County will most likely close their dispatch center and have North 

Dakota State Radio provide dispatching services for the balance of Morton County.  At 

that point the City of Mandan would realize a savings of more than $500,000 and Morton 

County more than $2 million over the next 4 years.  Chief Nardello provided a handout of 

the of cost comparisons of which both Bismarck/Burleigh and Mandan/Morton 

Communications have agreed to the numbers outlined in the handout report as being 

accurate.  For the reasons presented, Fire Chief Nardello stated that he and Police Chief 

Bullinger request that the City Commission approve consolidation of the Mandan City 

Dispatch Services with the Bismarck/Burleigh Combined Communications Center.  

 

Commissioner Rohr provided a brief history of the dispatch centers from over the years 

dating back to 1985 when both Mandan and Morton County operated separate dispatch 

systems.  About 3 or 4 years ago, they combined into a County Communications Center 

wherein everything was put under the auspices of the County.  That was how it has 

progressed historically. Since then there have been many changes in technology, 

leadership, security requirements, and so on.  He commented that dispatching services 

have changed considerably over the last 30 years.  The proposal presented today shows a 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 5 of 10 

cost savings and just as good or probably even better services will be provided to the 

citizens.  It will also provide a better adjustment to the new and better technology 

services while remaining under the current records management systems that are in place 

within the Police and Fire Departments.  Police Chief Bullinger stated that there is an 

interface that has been started already. But it has been put on hold until a decision is 

made on this matter. This interface will allow the Bismarck CAD software to push that 

information into the records management software that the Mandan Police Department is 

currently using.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to pursue drafting an acceptable Memorandum of 

Understanding between Burleigh-Bismarck Emergency Dispatch and the City of Mandan 

for the consolidation of a Communications Center.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the 

motion.  Commissioner Laber stated that it will be important to follow up with the 

Memorandum of Understanding to make sure the needs of the City of Mandan are met 

since this relates to public health and welfare.    

 

Commissioner Tibke indicated that this decision is not made lightly. It has been discussed 

for quite some time from every angle possible. After considerable thought being put into 

it, it was felt the time has come to make a final decision.   

 

Commissioner Rohr wished to verify that if the City does separate from the County in 

this matter, the County will not be left in a predicament or uncomfortable position in 

order for them to continue dispatch services with their own resources.   

 

Commissioner Braun commented that when looking at the big picture, (like the flood of 

2011), when all the emergency management teams came together; he believes there 

should be a hierarchy process. He noted that if the County goes with the State Radio 

System, then the key is that all systems should eventually be tied together.  He also noted 

that currently the first responders for the County Sheriff are the highway patrol so it is 

appropriate for them to go with the State Radio as their dispatch service.  For the City of 

Mandan, the first responder is the Sheriff’s Department. But the City also looks to 

Bismarck/Burleigh within this consolidated program.  He said it is important to him to 

work towards going with the State Radio System as a focal point that controls these 

matters. A good example is the Fargo, Moorhead and West Fargo systems and how well 

they work together.  Lastly, as administrators, it is important that we are fiscally 

responsible to the community. 

Morton County Commissioner Cody Schulz commented that it would be beneficial to 

have an immediate transition plan in place in order to assign or reassign dispatchers to 

State Radio or the Bismarck/Burleigh Center whichever the case might be should certain 

dispatchers decide to look for other work rather than transition to another center. 

Mayor Van Beek called for a roll call on the motion made by Commissioner Laber which 

was seconded by Commissioner Rohr to pursue drafting an acceptable Memorandum of 

Understanding between Burleigh-Bismarck Emergency Dispatch and the City of Mandan 

for the consolidation of a Communications Center. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 6 of 10 

Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.         Consider adoption of media relation guidelines: Business Development 

Communications Director Huber stated that she and City Administrator Neubauer have 

worked on developing a set of proposed media relations guidelines at the request of 

commissioners who were seeking further guidance for themselves and for City staff when 

communicating with the media in response to media inquiries.  The City of Mandan is 

committed to creating and maintaining consistent, accurate and timely communication 

with all members of the media and the public regarding programs, projects, planning, 

activities and policy decisions of the City Commission.  Also while recognizing the role 

the media plays in communicating City news and information to the public and the value 

of reporting the public’s views back to the City of Mandan.  She said that research has 

been conducted with other cities of similar size within North Dakota, having found that 

some do not have a policy and others might have direct contact with various departments 

and staff without having to channel information through a communications department.  

It was recommended that the City continue to allow the media to have direct contact with 

the subject matter experts in the various departments.  She welcomed questions, if any, to 

the proposed guidelines that have been provided.   

 

Commissioner Tibke stated that she made these recommendation or amendments to what 

staff brought forward, noting this would be for spokesperson rules: 

     (1)  Suggested that the portfolio commissioner be the official spokesperson for the 

interviews that deal with their portfolio, typically that individual knows more about the 

subject matter or will have more history of what is going on.   

     (2)  If a commissioner contacts the media, they are to be clear about whether his/her 

comments represent the official City position.  After vote, she recommended that it 

should be both the Mayor and the Commissioner.  

 

Director Huber pointed out that what Commissioner Tibke is referencing above comes 

directly from the Leadership Code for Elected Officials that had been previously 

approved by this City Commission.  She recommended that if there are changes to that 

section, we would want to bring it back for future review under the Leadership Code 

which would include the Mayor as a Commissioner.  Commissioner Tibke requested 

clarification because there are two different interpretations, at least for future reference.  

Commissioner Rohr commented it is his re-collection that the original Leadership Code 

came from the League of Cities.  Administrator Neubauer stated that the Leadership 

Guide for Elected Officials was originated from the City of Wahpeton, and that also 

includes more things, not just the Leadership Policy, such as general principles.   Director 

Huber stated it was adopted by the City Commission on January 18, 2011.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved that the City of Mandan adopt media relations guidelines as 

proposed but with the amendment that if a Mayor or Commissioner are contacted by the 

media that both the Mayor or the Commissioner need to be clear about whether his or her 

comments represent the official City position or if it is their personal viewpoint.  

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 7 of 10 

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Consider adding additional traffic related cross-references to North Dakota 

Century Code sections to new city code:  Planner Decker explained that this is a minor 

revision to clean up this area where a City Code section number was linked to each 

section number of Chapter 39 for Motor Vehicles in order to be able to issue citations 

into Municipal Court.   

 

4.         Consider setting recommended penalty amounts for certain traffic related 

violations of city code: City Planner Decker explained this is a companion item to No. 3 

establishing the recommended penalty for traffic related violations of City Code so the 

person paying the citation has the option to pay and not go to court. This gives a value to 

the citation. The goal is to create one list of penalties and put them in one place so the 

Police Department employees have a list that cross-references the City Code section to 

the Century Code section.  Most fees are set by state law and are carried over in their 

existing amounts.  The court costs are separately assessed, this references the citation 

amounts for the basic penalty.  Chief Bullinger verified that the fees and fines referenced 

are up to date with state requirements.   

 

5.         Update on recycling program communications plan: Business Development & 

Communications Director Huber stated that with the approval of the recent recycling 

program a request was made to develop a communication plan to introduce the new 

program to Mandan residents.  City Staff and Dakota Sanitation met to outline the roles 

and responsibilities.  Dakota Sanitation will be responsible for all communication 

activities or advertising that have a direct cost.  This will include brochures to be included 

in the November mailing of the water bill along with the monthly newsletter and packet 

of information that will be distributed with the recycling totes in December.  Information 

will be also distributed in news releases and media guest interviews through television or 

radio.  A www.cityofmandan.com/recycle has been established explaining information as 

it becomes available.  The Mandan Messenger and Mandan’s Facebook page will include 

information now and in future publications.  Dakota Media has created a “City Current” 

link and they are currently working with the City of Mandan and City of Bismarck to 

provide updates for various departments.  Public Service announcements will be utilized 

too.  A timeline with expectations was drafted that states Dakota Sanitation will have all 

key “how to” information to the City no later than October 1
st
. which is included in part 

of the contract that was approved.  Dakota Sanitation will be required to have pre-

approval from the City of Mandan for any publications it will use.  The brochure that will 

go out with the water bills to be mailed in November should be finalized by 10/26/15.  

Collection will begin in January 2016.  One of the best practice suggestions is that some 

cities have used, is to set a target date of residential waste diversion by a certain time/year 

which will be discussed at a future time.  Director Huber stated that City staff is 

comfortable with the plans for implementation thus far and will monitor resident 

participation and continue with on-going communications of those involved.   This report 

is informational with no action required.   

http://www.cityofmandan.com/recycle


City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 8 of 10 

Rick Anderson, Owner of Dakota Sanitation provided additional information on the 

recycling project and concurred with the implementation plan as outlined by Director 

Huber.  He added that there will be no charge to the school system for recycling costs 

noting that it is their thought that the kids will begin to realize the importance of 

recycling programs.  He said there will be no cost to the Mandan Airport.  He projected a 

22½ % reduction in waste and reported that there has been a lot of positive feedback from 

citizens.  He said they eventually intend to take this recycling program to the rural 

population and smaller communities. The recycling services will be conducted on the  

same day as garbage service, but every other week.  The calendar schedule will be 

provided to citizens and it will be easy to read.   

 

Mayor Van Beek commented that social media is the best way to get information out to 

our residents so they are aware of when it starts, when totes will be showing up, etc.  

Commissioner Laber noted the City buildings recycling sites and encouraged that they be 

used accordingly.   

 

6.         (Possible) Consider legal action against Mr. Volochenko for violating city storm 

water management ordinance.(No. 1005):  Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, 

stated that on August 14, 2015, he was contacted by Director of Public Works Wright 

concerning the re-grading activities on the property without an approved storm water 

management plan nor proper erosion controls measures in place.  These have caused 

unapproved alterations to storm water collection for the lots owned by Leslie Volochenko 

and the other surrounding lots.  Joseph Camisa, City Code Enforcement Officer, was 

asked to follow up with Volochenko on 9/2/15 to explain the City’s concerns about the 

grading activities.  Volochenko stated a plan was submitted to the City and he received 

no response so he thought it was accepted.  The site engineer was contacted on 4/9/15 

and there was a list of items to be improved before approving any revisions.  The site 

engineer was contacted again to see if a new request had been submitted for a revision 

and there has been no response since 4/9/15.  As of the commencement of the grading 

activities, no revised storm water plan has been received or approved.   

 

A sequence of events was provided and reviewed with the Commission by Director 

Froseth.  He noted that the Engineer’s Office sent a certified letter to Mr. Volochenko on 

8/20/15 and that the notification has been received that Mr. Volochenko did get that 

letter.  In the contents of the letter, Mr. Volochenko was requested to regrade the property 

to restore the natural low area in the property where the water previously channeled to the 

City’s storm water inlet.  He was requested to install Best Management Practices erosion 

control where necessary to ensure no sediment or any other material leaves his site.  And 

he was advised to cease all earthmoving activities aside from the activity necessary to 

accomplish #1 until he has an approved Storm Water Management Plan.   

 

Consistent with Title 14.1 requires Commission authorization to allow the City Attorney 

to take legal action for unauthorized storm water management activities without a storm 

water management plan.  Based on the above, Director Froseth requested authorization 

for the City Attorney to commence action for appropriate legal and/or equitable relief.   

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 9 of 10 

Commissioner Braun commented that it appears the City staff has gone above and 

beyond trying to resolve the matter this far with Mr. Volochenko.  Director Froseth stated 

that at no time did anyone ever tell Mr. Volochenko that it was okay to proceed.   

 

Mayor Van Beek commented that it is understandable as to what the neighbors have 

tolerated with for the last several years, and that it is clear that Mr. Volochenko has not 

cooperated with his neighbors. The City has annexed the land and Mr. Volochenko still 

continues to be non-compliant. It is apparent that legal action needs to occur at this time 

for appropriate legal and/or equitable relief.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to proceed against Leslie Volochenko for violating city 

storm water management ordinance (No. 1005) for appropriate legal and/or equitable 

relief.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: 

Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

J.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:    

1.         Consider the second and final consideration of Ordinance No. 1215 making the 

annual appropriations for expenditures or expenses of the City of Mandan, North 

Dakota, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2016, and ending December 31, 2016, 

and making the annual tax levy for the year 2015.  Commissioner Tibke moved to 

approve the second and final consideration of Ordinance No. 1215 making the annual 

appropriations for expenditures or expenses of the City of Mandan, North Dakota, for the 

fiscal year commencing January 1, 2016, and ending December 31, 2016, and making the 

annual tax levy for the year 2015. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion. Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.          Resolution Establishing Rates and Charges for Services from the Solid Waste 

Utility Fund.  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Resolution Establishing Rates 

and Charges for Services from the Solid Waste Utility Fund. Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.          First consideration of Ordinance No. 1219 adding language to Chapter 24 of the 

New Mandan Code of Ordinances related to traffic violations. Commissioner Laber 

moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance No. 1219 adding language to 

Chapter 24 of the New Mandan Code of Ordinances related to traffic violations. 

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.          Consider for adoption resolution setting recommended penalty amounts for 

various violations of city code. Commissioner Braun moved to approve the adoption 

resolution setting recommended penalty amounts for various violations of city code. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 15, 2015 

Page 10 of 10 

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

5.          Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1216 creating zoning for 

Lakewood 9th Addition.  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Second 

Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1216 creating zoning for Lakewood 9
th

 

Addition. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Laber:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

6.          Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1218 – An Ordinance to 

Amend and Re-enact Section 9-02-11 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to 

Meters – Repair and Control. Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Second the 

Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1218 – An Ordinance to Amend 

and Re-enact Section 9-02-11 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to Meters – 

Repair and Control.  Commissioner Laber seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

K.       OTHER BUSINESS:   

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Braun moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:42 p.m. Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement Districts #177, #178, #179, #181, #182, #185, #186, #189, #190, #191, 

#192, #193 and #195.   

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   The projects, along with cost and description of 

the improvements provided within each district, are as follows: 

 

o Street Improvement District #177 - ($396,615.60)  New asphalt street 

construction on 34th Avenue NW and 48th Street NW within Meadows 

including curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip seal within 

Meadows 6th Addition. 

o Street Improvement District #178 - ($528,440.28)  New asphalt street 

construction on Amber Place SW, Spring Court SW and extension of 

Keidel Trail SW within Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Phase IV.  The 

project also included installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street 

lights and chip seal. 

o Street Improvement District #179 - ($373,074.39)  New asphalt street 

construction on 7th Avenue NW between 24th Street NW to 27th Street 

NW and on 26th Street NW to the west of 6th Avenue NW in Meadow 

Ridge 3rd Addition. The project also included installation of curb & 

gutter, storm sewer and chip seal. 

o Street Improvement District #181 - ($326,196.60)  New asphalt street 

construction took place in Meadows 7th Addition on Trident Court NW 

and on the continuation of Wildrye Circle NW.  The project also included 

installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip seal. 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 1, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Special Assessments 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement Districts #177, #178, #179, #181, 

#182, #185, #186, #189, #190, #191, #192, #193 

and #195. 

 

  

          Consent No. 1 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 2 of 12 

 

o Street Improvement District #182 - ($318,096.12)  New asphalt street 

construction took place on 6th Avenue NW south of 27th Street NW in 

Meadow Ridge 1st Addition. The project also included installation of curb 

& gutter, storm sewer, and chip seal. 

o Street Improvement District #185 - ($1,337,003.46)  New asphalt street 

construction took place on Plains Bend SE, 18th Street SE, Fields Court 

SE, 14th Street SE and Ridge Drive SE. within Heart Ridge 2nd Addition.  

The project also included installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street 

lights and chip seal. 

o Street Improvement District #186 - ($829,374.04) New asphalt street 

construction took place on portions of Lena Court SE, Mia Court SE, Will 

Court SE, Mario Court SE, Philip Court SE and Macedonia Avenue SE all 

within Macedonia Hills 1st Addition.  The improvements also included the 

installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights, chip seal and 

related work. 

o Street Improvement District #189 - ($79,365.85) New asphalt street 

construction took place on 39th Avenue SE.  The improvements included 

new asphalt street construction, installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, 

street lights, chip seal and related work. 

o Street Improvement District #190 - ($1,731,110.27) New asphalt street 

construction took place on portions of 2nd Avenue SW, 4th Avenue SW, 

8th Avenue SW, 20th Street SW and Cobblestone Loop SW within 

Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3rd Addition.   The improvements also 

included the installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights, chip 

seal and related work. 

o Street Improvement District #191 - ($221,383.36) New asphalt street 

construction took place on portions of Lena Court SE and Mia Court SE 

within Lincoln Ridge Estates 6th Addition.  The improvements also 

included the installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights, chip 

seal and related work. 

o Street Improvement District #192 - ($278,329.09) New asphalt street 

construction took place on portions of Corvette Street NW and a portion of 

Crown Point Road NW within West Hills 3rd Addition.  The 

improvements also included the installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, 

street lights, chip seal and related work. 

o Street Improvement District #193 - ($213,975.46) New asphalt street 

construction took place on Action Drive SE in the Midway 14th Addition. 

The improvements also included the installation of curb & gutter, storm 

sewer, street lights, chip seal and related work. 

o Street Improvement District #195 - ($891,124.81) The project consisted 

of street reconstruction on West and East Roughrider Circles NW, 

Horseshoe Bend NW, Wagonwheel Circle NW, Homestead Place NW and 

Lariat Court NW all within the Roughrider Estates Additions and a mill 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 3 of 12 

 

and overlay on 56th Avenue NW.  The project also consisted of spot repair 

of curb & gutter, chip seal and related work. 
 

The assessment lists for these districts were published in the Mandan News and the 

public hearing before the Special Assessment Commission was held on September 2, 

2015.  All members of the Special Assessment Commission voted to approve moving 

them on to the City Commission.  There were 2 residents that spoke at the public hearing 

with comments relative to these projects.  Assessments certified to Morton County by 

November 1
st
, 2015 to be included on December 2015 Tax Statements. 

 

The two residents that spoke at the public hearing on September 2 were Lee and Adeline 

Klapprodt who own the parcel at 4440 56
th

 Avenue NW.  I have attached the minutes 

from that meeting for your information.  Our office took into consideration that 56
th

 

Avenue NW did not have the extent of work on that street as the streets within the 

Roughrider subdivision but we also had to consider the zoning being commercial versus 

the residential zoning within Roughrider’s.  This parcel also has the benefit of an asphalt 

driveway up to the concrete of their building.  I have attached a picture for your reference. 

                                                                     

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Special Assessment Commission Public Hearing September 2, 2015 minutes 

2. Picture 4440 56
th

 Avenue NW (Lee and Adeline Klaprodt) 

3. Copies of the special assessments lists and maps of the respective districts.     

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Total Amount Assessed:  

  

         Street Improvement District 177 - ($396,615.60) 

           Years Assessed:  15 

           Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288% 

           No Interest Charged for the First Year 

 

         Street Improvement District #178 - ($528,440.28) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

 

         Street Improvement District #179 - ($373,074.39) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

 

         Street Improvement District #181 - ($326,196.60) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 4 of 12 

 

          

         Street Improvement District #182 - ($318,096.12) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

          

         Street Improvement District #185 - ($1,337,003.46) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

  

         Street Improvement District #186 - ($829,374.04) 

            Years Assessed:  15 

            Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288% 

            No Interest Charged for the First Year 

                     

                                 Street Improvement District #189 - ($79,365.85) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

          

         Street Improvement District #190 - ($1,731,110.27) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

  

         Street Improvement District #191 - ($221,383.36) 

            Years Assessed:  15 

            Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288% 

            No Interest Charged for the First Year 

          

         Street Improvement District #192 - ($278,329.09) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

  

         Street Improvement District #193 - ($213,975.46) 

            Years Assessed:  15 

            Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288% 

            No Interest Charged for the First Year 

 

         Street Improvement District #195 - ($891,124.81) 

                                 Years Assessed:  15 

Estimated Interest Rate:  4.288%  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 5 of 12 

 

No Interest Charged for the First Year 

                                   

STAFF IMPACT:    maximum     

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I would recommend the proposed assessments as certified by 

the Special Assessment Commission be confirmed on these thirteen projects.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the special assessments for certification on 

Street Improvement Districts #177, #178, #179, #181, #182, #185, #186, #189, #190, 

#191, #192, #193 and #195. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 6 of 12 

 

 

 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

Mandan Special Assessment Commission September 2, 2015 

The Special Assessment Commission (SAC) met in the “Bosh Froehlich Meeting Room” 

at Mandan City Hall on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m.   

A. Roll call: Members present were Keith Winks, Deborah Holter and Chairman Carl 

Jacobsen.  Also present were Engineering Project Manager Kim Fettig, Special 

Assessment Analyst Phyllis Hager and Planning and Engineering Director Justin 

Froseth. 

Chairman Jacobsen noted the purpose of this Commission as stated according to North 

Dakota Century Code, 40-23-07. 

B. Consider approval of the August 25, 2015 meeting minutes.   Holter made a 

motion to approve the August 25, 2015 meeting minutes as presented.  Winks 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

C. Public Hearing on the following districts: 

 

1. Street Improvement District #177 (Meadows 6th Addition)  New street 

construction took place on 34th Avenue NW and 48th Street NW including 

curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip seal within Meadows 6th 

Addition.  The Commission members acknowledged that no residents were 

present at the meeting in which to offer comments or objections on the 

projects to be heard at this public hearing.   Winks made a motion to confirm 

the special assessments as published for Street Improvement District #177 

and certify to the Board of City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 

2. Street Improvement District #178 (Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Phase IV)   

New asphalt street construction on Amber Place SW, Spring Court SW and 

the extension of Keidel Trail SW all within the Keidels’s South Heart Terrace 

Phase IV.  There being no public objections, Winks made a motion to confirm 

the special assessments as published for Street Improvement District #178 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 7 of 12 

 

and certify to the Board of City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

3. Street Improvement District #179 (Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition)   New 

asphalt street construction on 7th Avenue NW between 24th Street NW to 

27th Street NW and on 26th Street NW to the west of 6th Avenue NW in 

Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition.   There being no public objections, Winks made a 

motion to confirm the special assessments  

as published for Street Improvement District #179 and certify to the Board of 

City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter seconded the motion.  The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

-2- 

 

Noted:  City property owners Lee and Adeline Klapprodt appeared at the 

meeting at 5:37 p.m.   

 

4. Street Improvement District #181 (Meadows 7th Addition)   New asphalt 

street construction took place in Meadows 7th Addition on Trident Court NW 

and the continuation of Wildrye Circle NW along with curb & gutter, storm 

sewer, street lights and chip seal.  There being no public objections, Winks 

made a motion to confirm the special assessments as published for Street 

Improvement District #181 and certify to the Board of City Commissioners for 

their consideration.  Holter seconded the motion.  The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

5. Street Improvement District #182 (Meadow Ridge 1
st

 & 3
rd

 Addition  New 

asphalt street construction took place in Meadows 1st & 3rd Additions on a 

portion of 6th Avenue NW from 24th Street NW along with the installation of 

curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip seal.  There being no public 

objections, Winks made a motion to confirm the special assessments as 

published for Street Improvement District #182 and certify to the Board of 

City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter seconded the motion.  The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

6. Street Improvement District #185 (Heart Ridge 2nd Addition)   New asphalt 

streets along with curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip seal 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 8 of 12 

 

were installed on Plains Bend SE, 18th Street SE, Fields Court SE, 14th Street 

SE and Ridge Drive SE all within Heart Ridge 2nd Addition.  There being no 

public objections, Winks made a motion to confirm the special assessments 

as published for Street Improvement District #185 and certify to the Board of 

City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter seconded the motion.  The 

motion passed unanimously.   

 

7. Street Improvement District #186 (Macedonia Hills 1st Addition)   New 

street construction took place on portions of Lena Court SE, Mia Court SE, 

Will Court SE, Mario Court SE, Philip Court SE and Macedonia Avenue SE in 

Macedonia Hills 1st Addition.  The project also included the installation of 

curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip seal.  There being no public 

comments or objections, Winks made a motion to confirm the special 

assessments as published for Street Improvement District #186 and certify to 

the Board of City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter seconded the 

motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

8. Street Improvement District #189 (Lakewood 6th Addition)   Improvements 

included new asphalt street construction on a portion of Oxbow Trail SE 

along with the installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and 

chip seal all within Lakewood 6th Addition.  There being no public objections, 

Winks made a motion to confirm the special assessments as published for 

Street Improvement District #189  

-3- 

 

and certify to the Board of City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 

9. Street Improvement District #190 (Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3rd 

Additions)   New asphalt street construction took place on 2nd Avenue SW, 

4th Avenue SW, 8th Avenue SW, 20th Street SW and Cobblestone Loop SDW 

all within Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3rd Addition.  There being no public 

objections, Winks made a motion to confirm the special assessments as 

published for Street Improvement District #190 and certify to the Board of 

City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter seconded the motion.  The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 9 of 12 

 

10. Street Improvement District #191 (Lincoln Ridge Estates 6th Addition)  The 

project consisted of new asphalt street construction on portions of Lena 

Court SE and Mia Court SE within Lincoln Ridge Estates 6th Addition along 

with the installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights, chip seal 

and related work.  There being no public objections, Winks made a motion to 

confirm the special assessments as published for Street Improvement District 

#191 and certify to the Board of City Commissioners for their consideration.  

Holter seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

11. Street Improvement District #192 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition)  The 

district was created to allow for new asphalt street construction on Corvette 

Street NW and a portion of Crown Point Road NW within West Hills Estates 

3rd Addition.  Installation of curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip 

seal also took place within the project.  There being no public objections, 

Winks made a motion to confirm the special assessments as published for 

Street Improvement District #192 and certify to the Board of City 

Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter seconded the motion.  The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

12. Street Improvement District #193 (Midway 14th Addition)   The 

improvements took place on Action Drive SE in Midway 14th Addition.  They 

included an asphalt street, curb & gutter, storm sewer, street lights and chip 

seal.   There being no public objections, Winks made a motion to confirm the 

special assessments as published for Street Improvement District #193 and 

certify to the Board of City Commissioners for their consideration.  Holter 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

13. Street Improvement District #195 (Roughrider Estates Additions)   The 

project consisted of asphalt resurfacing by mill and overlay, spot repair of 

curb & gutter and related work on 56th Avenue NW, West and East 

Roughrider Circles NW, Horseshoe  

-4- 

 

14. Bend NW, Wagonwheel Circle NW, Homestead Place NW and Lariat Court 

NW all within the Roughrider Estates Additions.   

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 10 of 12 

 

Lee and Adeline Klapprodt, owners of property on 4440 56th Avenue NW, 

appeared regarding this project.  Lee Klapprodt approached the podium 

stating that he spoke  

with Engineering Project Manager Kim Fettig in July, 2015 as to his 

assessments in comparison to the storage units across the road. He said an 

easement existed between the City and Adeline Klapprodt, heir to the 

property along with another 20 acres which are not within the City, which 

conveyed a portion of the lot to the City for $10.00 for the installation of a 

lift station.  

 

Ms. Fettig informed him a 20% reduction in assessments was made to those 

properties benefiting from the construction performed on 56th Avenue NW 

which equated to $8,911.25.  Those properties benefiting from construction 

on streets within the subdivision and 56th Avenue NW received assessments 

of $11,139.06.   Adeline Klapprodt felt that they should have received a 50% 

reduction for the construction on just one street. 

 

Mr. Klapprodt felt the assessment unfair since the properties across the 

street received the same assessment although that parcel has a larger front 

footage than his property.  Ms. Fettig informd him that the zoning is 

commercial for both properties and the method of calculating special 

assessments was not based on front footage but rather on a per lot basis 

assigned by a unit cost.  Also, Ms. Fettig explained that both his storage 

building and the storage units across were looked at as similar in nature and 

that it is necessary for both parties to use 56th Avenue NW in order to  gain 

access to their lots.    Ms. Fettig stated this benefit is determined according 

to the North Dakota Century Code. She also reminded Mr. Klapprodt that his 

lot received asphalt paving up to the concrete slab next to his building. 

 

Planning & Engineering Director Justin Froseth informed Mr. Klapprodt that 

the original plan did not include asphalt paving next to the lift station since 

maintenance requires only an aggregate surface. Mr. Froseth further stated 

an improvement was made to asphalt paving and costs became part of the 

project. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 11 of 12 

 

Ms. Holter commented that many others are in the same position 

concerning high specials.   She asked if a written easement existed between 

the City and Adeline Klapprodt.  Mr. Froseth said “Yes”. 

 

Chairman Jacobsen noted that the committee saw the assessments as fair 

and equitable but Mr. Klapprodt did have some valid comments.   He also 

stated that Mr.  

-5- 

 

Klapprodt could appear at the October 6th City Commission meeting since 

the City Commission is scheduled to give consideration and final approval to 

all the projects.   With this, Holter made a motion to confirm the special 

assessments as published for Street Improvement District #195 and certify to 

the Board of City Commissioners for their consideration.  Winks seconded the 

motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

D. Adjourn.   There being no further business to come before the Commission, 

Holter made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5:58 p.m.  Winks seconded the 

motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

____________________ 
Carl Jacobsen, Chairman 

 

Dated: ______________ 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 6, 2015 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessment Projects 

Page 12 of 12 

 

 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #177 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2"d Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to hear 
objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street Improvement District #177 
as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #177 

We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do hereby 
certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land which, in the 
opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction performed in Street 
Improvement District #177 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount against each lot or tract, the 
same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein described to the best judgment of the 
members of the Commission. The items of expense in said improvement district and the assessments 
are as follows, to-wit. 

Construction $351,339.00 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 37,499.79 
Bonding Costs 7,776.81 
Amount to be Assessed $396,615.60 

Seq# Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 
Meadows 6th Addition 

6630 1 1 5001 34th Avenue NW $26,441.04 
6631 1 2 5000 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6632 1 3 4908 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6633 2 3 4904 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6634 3 3 4900 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6635 4 3 4815 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6636 5 3 4812 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6637 6 3 4808 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6638 7 3 4804 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6639 1 4 4909 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6640 2 4 4905 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6641 3 4 4901 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6642 4 4 4813 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6643 5 4 4809 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 
6644 6 4 4805 34th Avenue NW 26,441.04 

Witness our hand officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

Isl Carl Jacobsen, Chairman 

Isl Keith Winks, Member 

Isl Deborah Holter, Member 





NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #178 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to hear objections 
which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street Improvement District #178 as shown 
in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #178 

We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do hereby 
certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land which, in the 
opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction performed in Street 
Improvement District #178 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount against each lot or tract, the 
same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein described to the best judgment of the 
members of the Commission. The items of expense in said improvement district and the assessments 
are as follows, to-wit. 

Construction $ 482,961.73 

Engineering, Legal, Administration 33,783.18 

Testing & Inspection 1,333.75 

Bonding Costs 10,361.62 
Amount to be Assessed $528,440.28 

Seq# Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 

Keidels South Heart Terrace 1st Addition 
10771 30 3 1703 4th Avenue SW $ 7,141.08 

Keidel's South Heart Terrace 2nd Addition 
11126 12 3 518 Keidel Trail SW 7,141.08 
11127 13 3 522 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11128 14 3 600 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11129 15 3 604 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11130 16 3 608 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11131 17 3 612 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11132 18 3 704 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11133 19 3 708 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11134 20 3 712 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11135 21 3 804 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11136 22 3 808 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11137 23 3 812 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11138 1 4 811 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11139 2 4 807 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 

11140 3 4 803 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 

11141 4 4 1705 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 

11142 5 4 1709 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 
11143 6 4 1801 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 
11144 7 4 1805 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 



-2-

11145 8 4 1804 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 
11146 9 4 1800 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 
11147 10 4 1708 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 
11148 11 4 1704 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 
11149 12 4 1700 Amber Place SW 14,282.17 
11150 13 4 609 Keidel Trail SW 14,282.17 
11151 14 4 1705 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11152 15 4 1709 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11153 16 4 1801 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11154 17 4 1805 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11155 18 4 1809 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11156 19 4 1812 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11157 20 4 1808 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11158 21 4 1804 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11159 22 4 1800 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11160 23 4 1708 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11161 24 4 1704 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 
11162 25 4 1700 Spring Court SW 14,282.17 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

/sf Carl Jacobsen 
Member 

Isl Keith Winks 
Member 

/sf Deborah Holter 
Member 



Meeting Date: August 20, 2013 
Subject: Award of Bids for Street Improvement District 178, Project 2013-04 
(Keidel 's South HeaLt Terrace Phase IV). 
Page 6of7 

w 
(!) 

ru :...) 

----1,; 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #179 

Notice is Hereby Given that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2"d Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to hear objections 
which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street Improvement District #179 as shown 
in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #179 

We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do hereby 
certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land which, in the 
opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction performed in Street 
Improvement District #179 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount against each lot or tract, the 
same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein described to the best judgment of the 
members of the Commission. The items of expense in said improvement district and the assessments 
are as follows, to-wit: 

Construction $341,406.43 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 24,352.73 

Bonding Costs 7,315.23 
Amount to be Assessed $373,074.39 

Seq# Lot Block Address 
Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition 
11336 3 1 2611 ih Avenue NW 
11337 4 1 2607 th Avenue NW 
11338 5 1 2603 7th Avenue NW 

11339 6 1 2511 th Avenue NW 
11340 7 1 2507 th Avenue NW 
11341 8 1 2503 7th Avenue NW 
11343 2 2 2606 7th Avenue NW 

11344 3 2 2602 th Avenue NW 
11345 4 2 2510 7th Avenue NW 

11346 5 2 2506 7th Avenue NW 
11347 6 2 2502 th Avenue NW 

Replat of Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition (Lot 1, Block 2) 
11342-01 1 2 
11342-02 2 2 
11342-03 3 2 
11342-04 4 2 
11342-05 5 2 
11342-06 6 2 
11342-07 7 2 
11342-08 8 2 

Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition Replat 
11760 1 1 
11761 2 1 
11762 
11763 

3 
4 

1 
1 

2614 th Avenue NW 
2612 7th Avenue NW 
2610 th Avenue NW 
2608 th Avenue NW 
707 26rH Street NW 
705 26th Street NW 
703 26th Street NW 
701 25th Street NW 

804 26th Street NW 
802 26th Street NW 
712 26th Street NW 
710 26th Street NW 

Amount Assessed 

$28,698.03 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 
19,132.02 

9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 

9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 



-2-

11764 5 1 708 26th Street NW 

11765 6 6 706 26th Street NW 

11766 7 1 704 26th Street NW 
11767 8 1 702 26th Street NW 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

/sf Carl Jacobsen 
Chairman 

/sf Keith Winks 
Member 

/sf Deborah Holter 
Member 

9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 
9,566.01 



7 

4 

21 6 28 

11C I 1 11 1 11 1 
110 2 

3 

4 

3 2 1 I " ~ SA ;: 
z 

"' 68 w :0 
:0 z w z 6A > "' > < < 

~ :c 7 b; 

;: I 20 10 20 10 20 10 z 8 
w 
:0 z 

24TH STREET NW w 
;; 
:c 
Ii; 

1 ;: 
1 ' I 

z 
w 
:0 

~ 
> < 

~ 

27TH STREET NW 

1 l 
1 2 !3 4 5 5, 7 8 

fr 1 
2 

5 6 7 8 

3 I ~ . 
4 

2 11 
~ 

10A w 

3 108 
l ~ 
: ~ 
• :c 

4 9 ' ~ 

SA BA 

58 88 

l) 6 I 7 

2 12 

9 

3 2 

;: 
z ;: ;: z z 
Cl (.) 

w w w :0 
:0 :0 ~ z z 

> 10 1 w 10 1 w 
10 < > > < < 

I AUD LOT F 

\!treet Improvement District 179 
roject - 2013-1 O 

Meadows 3rd Add. 

4 

8 AUD LOTG 

J I ~ .-

- -r, --
\ I . .,. 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #181 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2"d Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to hear objections 
which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street Improvement District #181 as shown 
in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #181 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do hereby 
certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land which, in the 

opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction performed in Street 

Improvement District #181 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount against each lot or tract, the 

same is a true and correct assessment of the property described to the best judgment of the members 

of the Commission. The items of expense in said district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit. 

Construction $293,968.94 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 25,831.66 
Bonding Costs 6,396.00 
Amount to be Assessed $326,196.60 

Seq# Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 
Meadows ih Addition 
11385 1 1 3704 Wildrye Circle N $16,309.83 
11386 2 1 3706 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11387 3 1 3804 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11388 4 1 3806 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11389 1 2 3701 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11390 2 2 3703 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11391 3 2 3705 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11392 4 2 3801 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11393 5 2 3803 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11394 6 2 3805 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11395 7 2 3903 Wildrye Circle N 16,309.83 
11396 8 2 3905 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11397 9 2 3907 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11398 10 2 3909 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11399 11 2 4005 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11400 12 2 4009 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11401 13 2 4008 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11402 14 2 4004 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11403 15 2 3908 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 
11404 16 2 3904 Trident Court NW 16,309.83 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 301
h day of July, 2015. 

/sf Carl Jacobsen, Chairman 

/sf Keith Winks, Member 

/sf Deborah Holter, Member 

Publish: August 14, 2015 & August 21, 2015 



Street Improvement District 181 
Project - 2013-1 

Meadows 7th Add. 

11 10i 

12 -
9 8 7 

2 

13 
ea~ 
. "l r>l\/11> ·~~ 

z 
AUDITORS LOT B I 15 1 2 .. 

J 

3 0 
J 

2 ~ 

2 1 2 3 
$: 1 
z 

2 UJ 
> 
<( 

:i: 2 4 
1 1 f-

Ol 

"' 
4BTH ST NW 

6 5 4 ! 3 2 

~..f'lr 

4 3 2 

1 

2 3 4 5 

39TH />.VE NW 

7 8 
4 5 6 

6 
8 

10 

' 2 2 3 4 

1 1 2 

4 2 3 

5 2 
4 

7 

6 4 
1 

12 2 j 6 

11 18 !§' 
rt 

10 17 "" 
9 16 

:z::" 8 
~ 
"' 

14 
12 

10 
1 2 

1 
5 1 4 

I 3 

3 

;: 3 
z 3 
U.J 
> 5 "' f 
M 5 ' fi 

7 5 \J 
5 ----~r ., 

6 I I 

2 4 7 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #182 

Notice is Hereby Given that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to hear objections 
which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street Improvement District #182 as shown 

in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #182 

We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do hereby 
certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land which, in the 
opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction performed in Street 
Improvement District #182 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount against each lot or tract, the 
same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein described to the best judgment of the 
members of the Commission. The items of expense in said improvement district and the assessments 
are as follows, to-wit. 

Seq# Lot 
Meadow Ridge 1st Addition 

00037 1 

Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition 

11348 7 
11349 8 
11350 9 
11351 10 
11352 11 

Construction 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 
Testing & Inspection 
Bonding Costs 

$280, 776.66 
28,447.55 
2,634.75 
6,237.16 

$318,096.12 Amount to be Assessed 

Block Address 

1 600 Meadow Ridge Loop N 

2 2501 6th Avenue NW 

2 2505 6th Avenue NW 

2 2509 6th Avenue NW 

2 2601 6th Avenue NW 

2 2605 6th Avenue NW 

Re12lat of Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition 
11342.01 1 2 2614 ih Avenue NW 

11342.02 2 2 2612 J1h Avenue NW 

11342.03 3 2 2610 ih Avenue NW 

11342.04 4 2 2608 ih Avenue NW 

11342.05 5 2 707 26th Street NW 

11342.06 6 2 705 26th Street NW 

11342.07 7 2 703 26th Street NW 

11342.08 8 2 701 26th Street NW 

Meadow Ridge 3rd Addition Re12lat 
11760 1 1 804 26th Street NW 

Amount Assessed 

$214,596.12 

17,500.00 
17,500.00 
17,500.00 
17,500.00 
17,500.00 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

1,000.00 



-2-

11761 2 1 802 26th Street NW 1,000.00 
11762 3 1 712 26th Street NW 1,000.00 
11763 4 1 710 26th Street NW 1,000.00 
11764 5 1 708 26th Street NW 1,000.00 
11765 6 1 706 26th Street NW 1,000.00 
11766 7 1 704 26th Street NW 1,000.00 
11767 8 1 702 26th Street NW 1,000.00 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

Isl Carl Jacobsen 
Chairman 

Keith Winks 
Member 

Isl Deborah Holter 
Member 



...... 
I I I 

29TH ST N\./ 

10 I 9 Id 71 I s I 1
3

1 l 1 II 
11 I 

27TH 

11 lA 
HD lB 

JlC 
UD 

~I I I ~ 

I I 1w ::::> 
...i 
::> z 
I" " I I~ 
l - 1 1.:r 

z 
..J 
~I (4J ~ 

J: :r: -
\I .... I I 1';:; .... 
I-

20 I 10 20 

113 I I 15 I 

28TH ST N\./ 

1 

10 

a 1©6 1 
21 I II~ l I 

STREET 

~ 
z 

w 
::> z 
w II 
> 
<t 

J: 
l-_Ii 
0 .... 

-

11 

0 

20 

1 

10 

I 17 I 

14 I 
I I 

N\./ 

~ z 

J w 
::::> z 
w 
> 
<t 

I 

~4T~ ~TREET N\./ - . .. . - . 

l 19 I 20 I 
! 

12 11 I 
I 128 I I 

11 1 

I~ 
z 

CD 
,, 
~ 
!> 
"1" 

20 10 

I 1~ 
I 1 I 2 

~ 6 5 ~ 6 5 ~ 6 II 5 z z z 

w 
::l z 
w 

CD > 
<t 

a::i 

~~ 0 0 
w w w 
::> :::> ::> 

I 
I-

I ''° 

z z z w w w 
> 10 1 > 10 1 ~ I 10 <t <I: 

2 

> z 

3 ' ~I 10 w CD 1 \--=- s[{rjf WROVEMENT :::> z DIST C 182 
w 

2 11 > LOTF PRO c 2013-16 
w <!: 
::> 

5 I~ 3 
10 

I :c 

;---1:;: 4 9 I to 

:c 5 8 
I-,..... 

a I I 6 I 7 l ~I I- 1~ z 

w 
::l 
7 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #185 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North 
Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 
at 5:30 p.m. to hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in 
Street Improvement District #185 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his 
agent or attorney. Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTICT #185 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do 
hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land 
which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction 
performed in Street Improvement District #185 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount 
against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein 
described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. The items of expense in 
said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit. 

Construction $1,302,714.89 
Legal, Admin., 204.36 
Testing & Inspection 7,868.50 
Bonding Costs 261215.71 
Amount to be Assessed $1,337,003.46 

Seq# Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 
Heart Ridge 1st Addition 
10983 19 1 1520 Ridge Drive SE $17,141.07 
10984 20 1 60114th Street SE 17,141.07 
11010 13 3 1521 Ridge Drive SE 17,141.07 

Heart Ridge 2nd Addition 
11190 1 1 515 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11191 2 1 51118th Street SE 17,141.07 
11192 3 1 507 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11193 4 1 503 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11194 5 1 41118th Street SE 17,141.07 
11195 6 1 407 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11196 7 1 403 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11197 1 2 1817 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11198 2 2 1813 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11199 3 2 1809 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11200 4 2 1805 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11201 5 2 1801 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11202 6 2 1701 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11203 7 2 1633 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11204 8 2 1629 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11205 9 2 1625 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11206 10 2 1621 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11207 11 2 1617 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 



11208 12 2 1613 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11209 13 2 1609 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11210 14 2 1601 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11211 15 2 17,141.07 
11213 1 3 514 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11214 2 3 510 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11215 3 3 506 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11216 4 3 502 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11217 5 3 410 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11218 6 3 406 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11219 7 3 402 18th Street SE 17,141.07 
11221 8 3 1800 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11222 9 3 405 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11223 10 3 409 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11224 11 3 501 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 

-2-
11225 12 3 505 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11226 13 3 509 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11227 14 3 513 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11228 15 3 517 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11229 16 3 516 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11230 17 3 512 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11231 18 3 508 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11232 19 3 504 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11233 20 3 500 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11234 21 3 408 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11235 22 3 404 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11236 23 3 400 Fields Court SE 17,141.07 
11237 24 3 1628 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11238 25 3 1624 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11239 26 3 1620 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11240 27 3 1616 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11241 28 3 1612 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11242 29 3 1608 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11243 30 3 1604 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 

Heart Ridge 3rd Addition 

11244 1 1 1509 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11245 2 1 1505 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11246 3 1 1501 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11247 4 1 1413 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11248 5 1 1409 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11249 6 1 1405 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11250 7 1 1401 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11251 8 1 1313 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11252 9 1 1309 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11253 10 1 1305 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11254 11 1 1301 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11255 12 1 1207 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 



11256 13 1 1203 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11257 14 1 1200 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11258 15 1 1204 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11259 16 1 1208 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11260 17 1 1300 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11261 18 1 1304 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11262 19 1 1308 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11263 20 1 1400 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11264 21 1 1404 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11265 22 1 1408 Plains Bend SE 17,141.07 
11019 23 1 600 14th Street SE 17,141.07 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

Isl Carl Jacobsen 

Chairman 

Isl Keith Winks 

Member 

Isl Deborah Holter 
Member 



AUD LDT 

3 

1 2 

3 4 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #186 

Notice is Hereby Given that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North 
Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to 
hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street Improvement 
District #186 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #186 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do 

hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land 

which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction 

performed in Street Improvement District #186 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount 

against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein 

described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. The items of expense in 

said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit: 

Construction $731,573.62 
Engineering, Legal, Administration 77,038.79 
Testing & Inspection 4,499.25 
Bonding Costs 161262.38 
Amount to be Assessed $829,374.04 

Seq# Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 
Macedonia Hills 1st Addition 
11290 1 1 2001 Macedonia Avenue SE $18,849.41 
11291 2 1 2005 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11292 3 1 2009 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11293 4 1 2013 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11294 5 1 2017 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11295 6 1 2101 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11296 7 1 2105 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11297 8 1 2109 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11298 9 1 2203 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11299 10 1 2207 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11300 11 1 2211 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11301 12 1 206 Philip Court SE 18,849.41 
11302 13 1 202 Philip Court SE 18,849.41 
11303 14 1 203 Philip Court SE 18,849.41 
11304 15 1 207 Philip Court SE 18,849.41 
11305 16 1 211 Philip Court SE 18,849.41 
11306 17 1 2309 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11307 18 1 2401 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11308 19 1 2405 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11309 1 2 2002 Macedonia Avenue SE 18,849.41 
11310 2 2 306 Lena Court SE 18,849.41 
11311 3 2 310 Lena Court SE 18,849.41 



-2-

11312 1 3 301 Lena Court SE 
11313 2 3 305 Lena Court SE 
11314 3 3 309 Lena Court SE 
11315 4 3 308 Mia Court SE 
11316 5 3 304 Mia Court SE 
11317 6 3 300 Mia Court SE 
11318 1 4 303 Mia Court SE 
11319 2 4 307 Mia Court SE 
11320 3 4 311 Mia Court SE 
11321 4 4 310 Will Court SE 
11322 5 4 306 Will Court SE 
11323 6 4 302 Will Court SE 
11324 1 5 301 Will Court SE 
11325 2 5 305 Will Court SE 
11326 3 5 309 Will Court SE 
11327 4 5 308 Mario Court SE 
11328 5 5 304 Mario Court SE 
11329 6 5 300 Mario Court SE 
11330 1 6 303 Mario Court SE 
11331 2 6 2408 Macedonia Avenue SE 
11332 3 6 307 Mario Court SE 
11333 4 6 311 Mario Court SE 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

/sf Carl Jacobsen 
Chairman 

/sf Keith Winks 
Member 

/sf Deborah Holter 
Member 

18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 
18,849.41 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: January 7, 2014 
Subject: Consider approving advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 
186, Project No. 2013-22 (Macedonia Hills 1st Addition). 
Pa e 5 of 5 

19TH STREET S\J 

STREET IMPROVEMENT -
3
--i 

0 CT #2013-22 
DISTRICT#l86 

7 
6 

GOV'T LDT 2 g 9 

12 
HI 

l 

11 I I 

1 © 3 
w 
V> LENA COLJ 
w 

0 ~ l 3 

w 
> 
<[ 

6 4 

<[ MIA ::o R SE 1--1 

z 
D 
~ 1 3 
w u 
<t 
L 6 ... 4 

1 

OIJRT SE 
I 

I 6 ® 4 

---
2 ~1-



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #189 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2"d Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to hear objections 
which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street Improvement District #189 as shown 
in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #189 

We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do hereby 

certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land, which in the 

opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction performed in Street 

Improvement District #189 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount against each lot or tract, the 

same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein described to the best judgment of the 

members of the Commission. The items of expense in said improvement district and the assessments 

are as follows, to-wit: 

Construction $71,626.47 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 5,195.87 
Testing & Inspection 987.25 
Bonding Costs 1,556.26 
Amount to be Assessed $79,365.85 

Seq # Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 
Lakewood 6th Addition Re~lat Lot lOB 
11271 1 1 3910 Lillian Court SE $4,177.15 
11272 2 1 3904 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11273 3 1 3838 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11274 4 1 3834 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11275 5 1 3830 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11276 6 1 3826 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11277 7 1 3822 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11278 8 1 3818 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11279 9 1 3814 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11280 10 1 3810 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11281 11 1 3806 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11282 12 1 3802 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11283 13 1 3811 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11284 14 1 3815 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11285 15 1 3819 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11286 16 1 3823 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11287 17 1 3827 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11288 18 1 3831 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 
11289 19 1 3905 Lillian Court SE 4,177.15 



Page 2 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

Isl Carl Jacobsen 
Chairman (SAC) 

/sf Keith Winks 
Member 

/sf Deborah Holter 
Member 



OUTLOT A 

McKENZIE DRIVE 

12 3 45678 

LOT 1 OF LOT B 

Street Improvement District 189 
Project - 2013-30 

Lakewood 6th Add. 
Replat of Lot 1 OB Blk 2 

10 
11 

8 

12 13 

O'f..p;:WlP>l\.sE 

9 

6 
1 

3 2 

2 

? ' 

5 

29TH STREET SE 

' 11 23456 
I 

8910UIJ 13: 

~ 

I 

l 

28 

~Ht---f 

7 

I 27A 

! i9" 
\ ~~ 

! 4 ~ 
1 

Zw 
=>> 
<( µ: 
Vjp 

2 

9 

~i 11 

'I> 
"s. 13 

25 

\ 2 \ 

36 

\ 
'-i. 

2 
23 

• 3 

"'""~ '>'k 
,.fi'r-:,u 

r; 

18 

18 

2 

15 

16 

6 

2 

14 

Zw 
i=> 
Cf)-
=> a: 
c:t:O 

278 

10 

i 

~i 
~m 

( 2 

--

" '§ 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #190 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North 
Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
to hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street 
Improvement District #190 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent 
or attorney. Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #190 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do 

hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land 

which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction 

performed in Street Improvement District #190 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount 

against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein 

described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. The items of expense in 

said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit. 

Mandan Lands 

Construction 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 
Testing & Inspection 
Bonding Costs 
Amount to be Assessed 

Block Address 

$1,578,405.26 
110,833.43 

7,939.00 
33,932.58 

$1,731,110.27 

9101.01 Pt of Gov Lots 3 & 4 Sec 3-138-81 
11768 Pt of Gov Lots 3 & 4 SW1/4NW1/4 Sec 3-138-81 

Keidel's South Heart Terrace 3rd Addition 
11416 1 1 817 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11417 2 1 813 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11418 3 1 809 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11420 5 1 806 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11421 6 1 804 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11422 7 1 802 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11423 8 1 706 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11424 9 1 704 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11425 10 1 702 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11426 11 1 606 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11427 12 1 604 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11428 13 1 602 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11429 14 1 506 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11430 15 1 504 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11431 16 1 502 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11432 1 2 821 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11433 1 3 822 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11434 2 3 814 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11435 3 3 705 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11436 4 3 703 Cobblestone Loop SW 

Amount Assessed 

$142,067.91 
317,111.57 

24,773.31 
24,968.54 
24,713.36 
24,912.76 
24,770.47 
24,780.52 
24,582.26 
24,607.87 
24,660.04 
24,660.04 
24,660.04 
24,660.04 
24,660.04 
24,660.04 
24,989.22 
24,095.60 
25,565.43 
25,355.97 
24,503.90 
24,501.62 



-2-

11437 s 3 701 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11438 1 4 603 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11439 2 4 601 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11440 3 4 S07 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11441 4 4 SOS Cobblestone Loop SW 
11442 s 4 S03 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11443 1 s SOO Cobblestone Loop SW 
11444 2 s 408 Cobblestone Loop SW 
1144S 3 s 406 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11446 4 s 404 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11447 s s 402 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11448 6 s 306 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11449 7 s 304 Cobblestone Loop SW 
114SO 8 s 302 Cobblestone Loop SW 
114S1 9 s 300 Cobblestone Loop SW 
114S2 10 s 240 Cobblestone Loop SW 
114S3 11 s 234 Cobblestone Loop SW 
114S4 12 5 230 Cobblestone Loop SW 
1145S 13 5 226 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11456 14 5 222 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11457 1 6 SOl Cobblestone Loop SW 
11458 2 6 407 Cobblestone Loop SW 
114S9 3 6 40S Cobblestone Loop SW 
11460 4 6 403 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11461 1 7 305 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11462 2 7 303 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11463 3 7 301 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11464 4 7 231 Cobblestone Loop SW 
1146S s 7 227 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11466 6 7 223 Cobblestone Loop SW 
11467 7 7 219 Cobblestone Loop SW 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

Publish: August 14, 201S 
August 21, 201S 

Isl Carl Jacobsen 
Chairman 

Isl Keith Winks 
Member 

Isl Deborah Holter 
Member 

24,81S.43 
24,687.18 
24,318.S3 
24,314.SS 
24,310.38 
24,32S.93 
24,9S1.47 
24,S87.19 
24,S87.19 
24,S87.19 
24,S87.19 
24,S87.57 
2S,977.52 
26,840.21 
26,368.SS 
2S,781.1S 
26,SS9.61 
26,924.26 
26,680.27 
25,069.10 
2S,118.24 
24,292.92 
24,288.94 
24,72S.31 
24,S4S.45 
24,314.SS 
24,428.96 
2S,441.3S 
24,819.61 
24,947.48 
2S,066.44 



. ' 
l 
i -

~ 

\\ 3;~ ..... ~~;~..,, 

.. 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #191 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North 
Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2°d Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
to hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street 
Improvement District #191 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent 
or attorney. Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #191 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, 
do hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of 
land which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction 
performed in Street Improvement District #191 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount 
against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein 
described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. The items of expense in 
said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit. 

Construction $195,435.01 
Engineering, Legal, Admin ., 19,773.54 
Testing & Inspection 1,834.00 
Bonding Costs 41340.81 
Amount to be Assessed $221,383.36 

Seq# Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 
Lincoln Ridge Estates 61

h Addition 
11667 1 1 402 Lena Court SE $13,836 .46 
11668 2 1 406 Lena Court SE 13,836.46 
11669 3 1 502 Lena Court SE 13,836.46 
11670 4 1 506 Lena Court SE 13,836.46 
11671 5 1 505 Lena Court SE 13,835.46 
11672 6 1 501 Lena Court SE 13,836.46 
11673 7 1 405 Lena Court SE 13,836.46 
11674 8 1 401 Lena Court SE 13,836.46 
11675 9 1 400 M ia Court SE 13,836.46 
11676 10 1 404 Mia Court SE 13,836.46 
11677 11 1 500 Mia Court SE 13,836.46 
11678 12 1 504 Mia Court SE 13,836.46 
11679 13 1 507 Mia Court SE 13,836.46 
11680 14 1 503 Mia Court SE 13,836.46 
11681 15 1 407 Mia Court SE 13,836.46 
11682 16 1 403 Mia Court SE 13,836.46 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

/sf Carl Jacobsen, Chairman 

/sf Keith Winks, Member 

Publish: August 14th & August 215
\ 2015 Isl Deborah Holte r, Member 



7 3 3 1 1 5 

:4 
32 

18TH ST SE 
3 

7 6 1 1 
3 I 

2 

2 

17 16 

19TH STREET SW Street Improvement District 191 
2 ro ject - 2014-04 

1 2 3 7 
1 A 1812A 2B.3A'3 

Lincoln Ridge Estates 6th Add. 4 
2 - - ~~~ 

LENA COURT SE - 5 10 3 
1

1A 1B2A2B,3A13 8 7 - 7 6 
1 21 

4 3 
10 11 

6 5 I 4 9 

5 
. ___r' \ 12 I 9 

' MIA COURT SE 
6 

w 

7 
::> 

3 ?. 2 
- 16 15 13 I 14 22 ; 21 

14 

LOT2 
4 L J 21ST STREET SE 

8 9 
C3 

U.J "' 17 -
6 18 en 

5 4 18 1 1 16 

13 

12 10 
1 U.J 

7 6 ::> z 
8 w 

WILL COURT SE > 
11 "' 

19 2 :i: 11 
14 

2 3 I 20 3 ' ~ U.J en 
PHILIP COURT SE 

5 

,J. 16 AUD LOT B 15 U.J 
4 

4 5 6 I 21 
(/) · 

22 "' ' <.,) ' -· 15 17 14 5 
«1 · 23 4 0.. 

10 ~ 
18 

MARIO COURT SE ;; \ 
24 .... 

'!) 

14 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #192 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North 

Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 

5:30 p.m. to hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street 

Improvement District #192 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent 

or attorney. Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #192 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do 

hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of land 

which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction 

performed in Street Improvement District #192 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount 

against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein 

described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. The items of expense in 

said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit. 

Construction 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 
Testing & Inspection 
Bonding Costs 
Amount to be Assessed 

$250,647.07 
20,281.81 
1,942.75 
5,457.46 

$278,329.09 

Seq # Lot Block Address Amount Assessed 
West Hills Estates 3rd Addition 
11652 1 1 4516 Corvette Street NW $21,409.93 
11653 2 1 4512 Corvette Street NW 21,409.93 
11654 1 2 4517 Corvette Street NW 21,409.93 
11655 2 2 4513 Corvette Street NW 21,409.93 
11656 3 2 4509 Corvette Street NW 21,409.93 
11657 4 2 4517 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 
11658 5 2 4513 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 
11659 6 2 4509 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 
11660 1 3 4602 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 
11661 2 3 4522 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 
11662 3 3 4518 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 
11663 4 3 4514 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 
11664 5 3 4510 Crown Point Road N 21,409.93 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

/s/ Carl Jacobsen, Chairman 

/sf Keith Winks, Member 

Isl Deborah Holter, Member 
Publish: August 14, 2015 & August 21, 2015 



2 

3 

4 

Street Improvement District 192 
Project - 2014-0 

West Hills Estates 3rd Add. 

2 3 4 5 6 7 
1 1 ,_,n 

5 

CORVCl TE STREET 

I 1 
6 

2 3 i, 4 5 6 7 2 
;: 
z 
w ,. 

2 3 4 5 6 7 
< 

1 2 3 § 
IMPALA COURT NW 

:16/\ !1511 
3 20 19 18 17 14 12 9 

16~ 1513 

OLD RED TRAIL 

24 

., 

4 

""' ~ v" 
23 

4 

6 

8 7 ,~ 

21 

3 5 

3 

47TH STNW 

4 

2 3 6 

1 ' 
NW 

8 8 

3 
21 5 

19 

18 2 
11 

13 
7 

~~<v 12 
<;) ;: 9 

2 16 z 

w ;: 
<3 z 

6 
a: 
u 

11 w 
=> z 
!;: 

11 
< 4 

CORTEZ I 

~ 10 
20 14 6 

OLD RED TRAIL 

12 

~ . 2 

10 •'1.\' 
ClloWA/ 

I I ·-;-r ' . Po,,,.,, ' . 
5 4 

16 "' 
' 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #193 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North 

Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 

to hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street 

Improvement District #193 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent 

or attorney. Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #193 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, 

do hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of 

land which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction 

performed in Street Improvement District #193 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount 

against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein 

described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. The items of expense in 

said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit. 

Midwa~ 14th Addition 
Seq# Lot 
1202.01 1 
1202.02 2 
1202.03 3 
1202.04 4 
1202.05 5 
1202.06 6 

Construction 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 
Testing & Inspection 
Bonding Costs 
Amount to be Assessed 

Block Address 
1 1400 Action Drive SE 
1 1440 Action Drive SE 
1 1450 Action Drive SE 
1 1447 Action Drive SE 
1 1439 Action Drive SE 
1 1401 Action Drive SE 

$186,868.59 
22,654.27 

257.00 
4,195.60 

$213,975.46 

Amount Assessed 
$72,150.75 

46,128.67 
20,828.87 
30,113.56 
19,883.38 
24,870.23 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

Publish: August 14, 2015 
August 21, 2015 

/sf Carl Jacobsen 
Chairman 

/sf Keith Winks 
Member 

/sf Deborah Holter 
Member 



2 0FB 

2 

~~-% 1 

0-9~( 
~Ji.)-: 

2 

LOT 1 
3 

lLJ 
Cf) 

lLJ 
> < 
:r: 
b 
~ 

lLJ 
Cf) 

lLJ 
> < 
:r: 
I-
0 
~ 

1A 

18 

I 
l ~ 

3 

20F 
4 

C OF 

2 

~., 

-$t<:j 
.• ..<) 

6 ..... ..,. 

~~-% 
0'9q 

1 <..y, 
~ 

w 
Cf) 

BE 

eo 

ec 

2 

. 

Street Improvement District 193 
roject - 2014-08 

Midway 14th Add. 

~ 

5 

BF 

~A 

\ 

\ 
.\ 

I 
) 

4?~-11. 
017/..q{ L, 

'i'11r: 

12 

s 

~'°)'..,~ 
~~""c,i,.. ,...,,,. 

30 

\ 
'ii-

3 

2 

r ----- -r, 
.Ii' 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #195 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, North 

Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on September 2, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 

to hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in Street 

Improvement District #195 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested or his agent 

or attorney. Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #195 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan do 

hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots and tracts of 

land, which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the construction 

performed in Street Improvement District #195 of the City of Mandan, showing the amount 

against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of the property therein 

described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. The items of expense in 

said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to-wit. 

Construction 
(Less City's Share) 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., 
Testing & Inspection 
Other 
Bonding Fees 
Amount to be Assessed 

$849,982.60 
{108,890.00) 

123,952.61 
7,419.70 
1,186.56 

17,473.34 
$891,124.81 

Seq# Lot 
Addie's Acres 

Address Amount Assessed 

11383 1 & 2 1 

Old Red Trail Storage 
232 1 1 

Roughrider Pioneer Addition 
5628 1 
5629 2 & 2A 
5630 3 &3A 
5631 4 
5632 5 
5633 6&6A 
5634 7 & 7A 
5635 8 
5636 9&9A 
5637 10 & lOA 
5638 11 & llA 
5639 12 (less NS') & Lot 12A 
5640 13 & 13A 
5641 14 & 14A & Tract #3 

4440 55th Avenue NW 

5700 Old Red Trail NW 

4914 E Roughrider Circle 
5004 Wagonwheel Circle 
5008 Wagonwheel Circle 
5012 Wagonwheel Circle 
5016 Wagonwheel Circle 
5017 Wagonwheel Circle 
5013 Wagonwheel Circle 
5009 Wagonwheel Circle 
5005 Wagonwheel Circle 
4902 E Roughrider Circle 
4814 E Roughrider Circle 
4810 E Roughrider Circle 
4804 E Roughrider Circle 
4802 E Roughrider Circle 

$ 8,911.25 

8,911.25 

11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 
11,139.06 



5642 15, 15A & lSB 4608 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S643 16 & 16A 4604 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S644 17 & 17A 4600 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S64S 18 & 18A 4601 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S646 19 & 19A 4605 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S647 20 & 20A 4607 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S648 21 & 21A 4609 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S649 22 & 22A 4613 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6SO 23 & 23A 4701 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6Sl 24 4711 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6S2 2S & 2SA 4713 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6S3 26 4717 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6S4 27 & 27A 4801 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6SS 28 4807 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6S6 29 & 29A 4811 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 

-2-
S6S7 30 4817 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S6S8 31-31A & vac portion of r-o-w 4901 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
56S9 32-32A & vac portion of r-o-w 490S W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S660 33 & 33A S901 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S661 34 S917 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
5662 3S 6001 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S663 36 GOOS Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S664 37 & 37A 6009 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S66S 38, 38A & 39A 6013 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S666 39 & vac portion of r-o-w 6017 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S667 40 & .02 acres of Lot 41 6012 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S668 41, 40A & 41A 6008 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S669 42 & 42A 6004 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S670 43 & 43A 6000 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S671 44 & 44A S916 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S672 4S & 4SA S912 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S673 46, 46A & 47A 5900 Horseshoe Bend 11,139.06 
S674 47 4911 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S675 48 & 48A SOOO Homestead Place 11,139.06 
S676 49, 49A & vac portion of r-o-w 4907 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S677 SO & 50A 4903 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S678 Sl & SlA 481S E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S679 52 & S2A 4813 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S680 S3 & S3A 4809 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S681 S4, S4A & vac portion of r-o-w 4805 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S682 SS, SSA & 64A (less N21') 4803 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S683 56 & 56A 471S E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S684 57 & S7A 4709 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
568S 58 & SBA 4611 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S686 S9 & S9A 4603 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S687 60 & GOA 4602 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S688 61, 61A & vac portion of r-o-w 4610 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
S689 62, 62A & vac portion of r-o-w 4710 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 



5690 63 & 63A 4712 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5691 64 4716 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5692 65, 65A & N21' of Lot 64 4800 W Rough rider Circle 11,139.06 
5693 66 & 66A 4806 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5694 67 & 67A 4808 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5695 68, 68A & vac portion of r-o-w 4812 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5696 69, 69A & vac portion of r-o-w 4816 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5697 70 & 70A 4900 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5698 71 & 71A 4904 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5699 72 & 72A 4908 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5700 73 & 73A 4912 W Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5701 74 & 74A 4913 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
5702 75, 75A & vac portion of r-o-w 4909 E Roughrider Circle 11,139.06 
7760 Lot B of SEl/4 8,911.25 
7760A Pt SEl/4 12-139-82 8,911.25 
7760AA Tracts 1 & 2 8,911.25 

Roughrider-Homestead Re1;1lat 
10308 1 1 5001 56th Avenue NW 11,139.06 

Witness our hands officially as said commission this 30th day of July, 2015. 

/sf Carl Jacobsen, Chairman 

/sf Keith Winks, Member 

/sf Deborah Holter, Member 
Publish: August 14, 2015 & August 21, 2015 



STREET IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT 195 
PROJECT 2014-13 

f~~ 

CD 

TR ACT B 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To authorize a change order to extend the date of September 30, 

2015 to Final Completion of November 15, 2015 excluding seal coat which is August 15, 2016. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   Due to the delays in grading of the site and in the 

lowering of a utility line the contractor has not been able to work on this project. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. District Map 

2. Change Order No. 1 

3. Letter of request for change order 
       

FISCAL IMPACT:   None 

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the change order for the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to authorize a change order on Street Improvement District 

No. 200, Project No. 2015-09 for completion date of November 15, 2015 excluding the seal coat. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: September 24, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider authorizing a work change order on 

Street Improvement District No. 200, Project No. 

2015-09 (24th Street NW). 

 

  

Consent Agenda No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider authorizing a change order on Street Improvement District No. 200, 

Project No. 2015-09 (24th Street NW). 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider authorizing a change order on Street Improvement District No. 200, 

Project No. 2015-09 (24th Street NW). 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider authorizing a change order on Street Improvement District No. 200, 

Project No. 2015-09 (24th Street NW). 

Page 4 of 5 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider authorizing a change order on Street Improvement District No. 200, 

Project No. 2015-09 (24th Street NW). 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To agree to fully reimburse the NDDOT for cost associated with the 

design of traffic signal at Main Street and Twin City Drive if the city should decide not to go 

forward with project.    

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  City staff and NDDOT staff are in agreement with the 

need to improve the traffic signal at Main Street and Twin City Drive. Given Main Street’s 

funding classification, the city’s share for both design and construction of this project is about 

10% or $25,000. This agreement assures the NDDOT that if the city should decide not to agree 

to move forward with the traffic signals, that the NDDOT would be fully reimbursed for design 

costs.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of Preliminary Engineering 

Reimbursement Agreement. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve of Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6,  2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 1, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Main and Twin City Dr. Traffic Signal Preliminary 

Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

 

  

Consent No. 3 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Main and Twin City Dr. Traffic Signal Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Main and Twin City Dr. Traffic Signal Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Main and Twin City Dr. Traffic Signal Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Main and Twin City Dr. Traffic Signal Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Main and Twin City Dr. Traffic Signal Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 



 

 

 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider the recommendations of Lee Pierce and 

Amber Larson to the Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC). Lee 

Pierce would be filling a 3 year term starting January 1, 2016 and also completing 

a vacant term starting October 1
st
 2015 to December 31

st
 2015. Amber Johnson 

will complete the balance of a 3 year term that will end January 1
st
 2017. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   The Mandan Architectural Review Commission 

(MARC) consists of nine members who are Miles Mehlhoff, Robert Vayda, Doug Lalim, 

Kim Fettig, Leonard Bullinger, Katie Wiedrich, and Steve Nardello.  There are currently 

two positions up for appointment.  In order to solicit interested parties, announcements 

were posted on the City of Mandan’s website. 

 

Three letters of interest was received.  The Mandan Architectural Review Commission 

(MARC) interviewed the applicants.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    Letter of interest from three applicants. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  We, the Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC), 

approve of the recommended applicants, Lee Pierce and Amber Larson to MARC.    

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  To appoint Lee Pierce to fill an unexpired term and also fill a 

3 year term starting January 1, 2016 to end January 1, 2019 and also to Appoint Amber 

Larson to fill an unexpired term that would end January 1, 2017. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: September 24, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Building Inspections  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Doug Lalim, Building Official 

PRESENTER: Doug Lalim, Building Official 

SUBJECT: Recommendations of two appointments to MARC 

 

  

Consent No. 4 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Recommendations of Lee Pierce and Amber Larson to MARC.  

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Recommendations of Lee Pierce and Amber Larson to MARC.  

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Recommendations of Lee Pierce and Amber Larson to MARC.  

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Recommendations of Lee Pierce and Amber Larson to MARC.  

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 
 



                                              

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a reduction in the structure value for the 

2015 year for Jack & Mary Ann Paul property, due to assessment that was made 

as a street appraisal and final review completed. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #65-3410000 

S25’ Lot 5 & All Lot 6 Block 85 N.P. 1
st
 Addition. 

 

Reason for abatement:  To lower the 2015 structure value from $162,200 to $146,700. 

After a complete review of Mr. & Mrs. Paul’s property to determine accuracy of our data 

and conducting a market analysis, I have arrived at a true and full value of $164,900 for 

the 2015 year, rather than $180,400 for 2015 a difference of $15,500 in true & full value. 

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Application for 2015 and data sheet. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $219 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the true and full 

value for the 2015 year to Jack & Mary Ann Paul’s property values.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for the Jack & Mary Ann 

Paul property for the 2015 assessment year. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: September 25, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw 

SUBJECT: Reassessment – Jack & Mary Ann Paul 

 

  

Consent No. 5i 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Jack & Mary Ann Paul Reassessment 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Jack & Mary Ann Paul Reassessment 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Jack & Mary Ann Paul Reassessment 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

 

 

 



                                              

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a reduction in the structure value for the 

2014 & 2015 year for Mr. Ostafin’s property, due to assessment that was made as 

a street appraisal and final review completed. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #65-2519000 

W32’ of S10’ Lot 5 & W32’ Lot 6 Block 24 Mandan Proper (O.T.). 

 

Reason for abatement:  To lower the 2014 structure value from $63,000 to $50,100, & 

2015 structure value from $62,900 to $50,100.  After a complete review of Mr. Ostafin’s 

property to determine accuracy of our data and conducting a market analysis, I have 

arrived at a true and full value of $58,400 for the 2014 year and $62,100 for the 2015 

year,  rather than $71,300 for 2014 a difference of $12,900 in true & full value; & 

$74,900 for 2015 a difference in true and full value of $12,800. 

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Application for 2014 & 2015 and data sheet. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $185 each year. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the true and full 

value for the 2014 & 2015 for Craig Ostafin property values.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for the Craig Ostafin property 

in the 2014 & 2015 year. 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: September 25, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw 

SUBJECT: Reassessment – Craig Ostafin 

 

  

Consent No. 5ii 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Reassessment – Craig Ostafin 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Reassessment – Craig Ostafin 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Reassessment – Craig Ostafin 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Reassessment – Craig Ostafin 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
 

 



. CITY·OFMANDAN 

SUNDAY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGEPERMIT 

Date of Application: _t}d' Q?!)'r/b_ ~/ !:J
NameofLicensee~ '22~ · -<jd,j-

Address ofLicensee: //~ !/ -zh- ffe<_ ~ 

I Consent No. 61 

Address of public facility if used: -~/~/~l-~!~1_?3__,,,ffe~~""'"-·~~~-----
State tbe purpose of organizaticm: -~~~~~=""zZ-~~~-=<~=~-------·-'_·· 

Date(s) ofrequested Sunday(s): __,r:J_""~_,,?/"'-"----<-£~i;-,__~ __________ _ 

Time of day which the applicant desires the permit to be in effect: I ,:f ,',:!t> /7/5h . J-o. / ~ 

Description oftbe rooms on the premises, which have been specifically reserved, for the 
dispensin of alcoholic beverages and dancin during the term of the permit: ~ - -

State whether the applicant requests permission to open to the general pub_lic, and if so an 
explanation of the reasons for the request: _£,~1'1"2'~-l2-,J;;fk,,~ti;,.~-=-~#,::::S,""--

If applicable, estimated number of police officers necessary to provide security at the 
dance to be open to the public: 41'.'--LL-------------------

I tbe applicant will abide to the following conditions: 

a. Alcoholic beverages may be distributed for consumption on the premises and 
Dancing may be permitted only in those rooms specifically reserved for event 
activities; 

( 

b. Dancing and the dispensing of alcoholic beverages shall be pennitted only 
between the hours of twelve noon on the date specified in the permit and one 
a.m. on the following Monday; 

c. Any conditions or circumstances delineated by the Board relating to the conduct 
of the event or to the admission of the general public to the event. 



CITY OF MANDAN 

SUNDAY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT 

Date of Application: 

Name of Licensee: 

Address of Licensee: -~1_/~/ __ ~(/_g___.~/_4,~u_·_c_. ~· ·~,!J/,_Z: _____ _ 

Address of public facility if used: /// ;/ 'fl-c<k<-e. A/£ 

State the purpose of organization: /)/2td' fk1·:1 Zd??J 

a!£ J,il tb- :l ' -
Date(s) of requested Sunday(s): ~·'~ I ,;rtJ 15 

Time of day which the applicant desires the permit to be in effect: /,£ 'flt/ · /.,xtrn 

Description of the rooms on the premises, which have been specifically reserved, for the 
dispensing of alcoholic beverages and dancing during the term of the permit: 

State whether the applicant requests permission to open to the general public, and if so an 
explanation of the reasons for the request: 

!Jh//lv i6 ~~ J-i k-z¥Z. 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of an assignment and consent agreement 

for the Storefront Improvement Project at 112 Second Avenue NW. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The building at 112 Second Avenue NW was 

approved for a Storefront Improvement Project by the City Commission on June 17, 

2014. On May 19, 2015, the City Commission approved an extension of the deadline for 

project completion until Dec. 31, 2015, and on Aug. 4, 2015, approved modifications to 

the storefront improvement plan. 

 

Property owners Dot and Jared Frank have entered into a purchase agreement to sell the 

building to Marc Menge. They have requested a transfer of the rights and responsibilities 

under the agreement to Mr. Menge. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Assignment and Consent Agreement 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  A forgivable loan equal to 50% of eligible storefront expenditures, 

not to exceed $30,000, was previously approved. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown prepared the Assignment and Consent Agreement. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 1, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Assignment & Consent Agreement for 112 Second 

Ave NW 

 

  

Consent No. 7  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject:  112 Second Ave NW Assignment & Consent Agreement 

Page 2 of 2 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approval of the Assignment and Consent 

Agreement to transfer rights and responsibilities to Marc Menge for the storefront 

improvement project at 112 Second Ave NW. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the Assignment and Consent Agreement to 

transfer rights and responsibilities to Marc Menge for the storefront improvement project 

at 112 Second Ave NW. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ASSIGNMENT AND CONSENT 

 This Assignment and Consent made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 

2015, by and between Dot Frank (“Seller”) and Marc Menge (“Assignee”), and the City of 

Mandan (“City”). 

 

 WHEREAS, Seller and the City entered into a Storefront Rehab Agreement providing for 

the improvement of the following described real property located in the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, ND: 

 

112 2
nd

 Avenue NW 

  

 WHEREAS, Seller intends to assign her rights and obligations under said Storefront 

Rehab Agreement to Assignee. 

 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, For good and valuable consideration, Seller hereby assigns to 

Assignee, all of her rights and obligations to said Storefront Rehab Agreement; and 

 

 Assignee agrees to be bound by all of the obligations in said Storefront Rehab 

Agreement; and 

 

 The City of Mandan consents to said assignment by Seller and assumption by Assignee 

for said Storefront Rehab Agreement. 

 

SELLER:      CITY: 

 

       CITY OF MANDAN 

____________________________________ 

Dot Frank 

        

       By:_________________________________ 

        Its ____________________ 

ASSIGNEE: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Marc Menge 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: In accordance with city change order policy, change orders of 

contract increase between $25,000 and $50,000 must be brought to city commission as an 

information item.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  This change order is necessary to modify the approach to 

reconstruct certain roads since discovering that the existing pavement thicknesses vary from what 

they were expected to be after the pavement boring report. More detailed explanation is seen 

below in the change order document.    

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Change Order No. 3 

       

FISCAL IMPACT:   Adds $36,747.70 to the contract amount, however, we expect to realize 

some cost savings as actual quantities are expected to under-run planned quantities as a result of 

this change in method. 

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  None. This item is for informational purposes.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  No motion necessary, for informational purposes.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Inform of approved C.O. #3 for SID #199 

(Downtown, east side SID). 

 

  

Consent Agenda No. 8 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Inform of approved C.O. #3 for SID #199 (Downtown, east side SID). 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Inform of approved C.O. #3 for SID #199 (Downtown, east side SID). 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Inform of approved C.O. #3 for SID #199 (Downtown, east side SID). 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To agree to fully reimburse the NDDOT for cost associated with the 

design of turn lane and lighting improvements at Highway 6 and 19
th
 Street should the city 

decide to not go forward with the project.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  City staff and NDDOT staff are in agreement with the 

need to improve the intersection at Highway 6 and 19
th
 Street SW. The drive for this project is 

primarily to improve the safety of this intersection with the introduction of turning lanes and 

intersection visibility. Since the project is a state safety project, the city does not have any local 

cost share responsibility. This agreement assures the NDDOT that if the city should decide not to 

agree to move forward with the project, that the NDDOT would be fully reimbursed for design 

costs.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of Preliminary Engineering 

Reimbursement Agreement. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve of Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6,  2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 1, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Highway 6 and 19
th

 Street Preliminary Engineering 

Reimbursement Agreement 

 

  

Consent No. 9 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Highway 6 and 19
th

 Street Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Highway 6 and 19
th

 Street Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Highway 6 and 19
th

 Street Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Highway 6 and 19
th

 Street Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Highway 6 and 19
th

 Street Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Highway 6 and 19
th

 Street Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approval of the Memorial Highway Traffic Signals 

Project Cost Participation, and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The city and the DOT have agreed that there is a need to; 

1) Improve the traffic signal at Memorial Highway and 46
th
 Avenue SE to make the signals 

permanent instead of the current temporary span wire, and 2) Install traffic signals at the 

intersection of Memorial Highway and 40
th
 Avenue SE.    

 

In order for the DOT to bid this project through their system, a requirement of receiving funding, 

the CPM Agreement must be agreed to. The CPM Agreement lays out which entity is responsible 

for each task of the project and is a standard DOT agreement. The local share of this project is to 

be funded by the Mandan sales tax fund.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1) CPM Agreement 

   2) Risk Management Appendix 

   3) Funding Summary Appendix 

   4) Project Cover Sheet with Map 

  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Given the classification of the corridor as being on the Secondary Regional 

System, the cost share for the city is 10%, which is estimated to be $77,270 as described on the 

Funding Summary Appendix.   

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) 

CPM Agreement 

 

  

Consent No. 10  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 2 of 12 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the board approve the Memorial Highway Traffic Signals 

(40
th
 and 46

th
) Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th
 and 

46
th
) Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 3 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 4 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 5 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 6 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 7 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 8 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 9 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 10 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Memorial Highway Traffic Signals (40
th

 and 46
th

) CPM Agreement 

Page 12 of 12 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Request is to split the lots to allow construction of two and three unit buildings with 

individual dwelling unit ownership. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

This subdivision is zoned RM that allows multi-family structures. 

 

Subsection 11 labeled Exceptions allows for an average minimum lot size of 2400 square 

feet.  The smallest lot size proposed is 2911 square feet.   

 

Connection of water and sanitary sewer lines must be coordinated with Public Works.  If 

new water service connections are required, the connection must be bored so that the 

street will not have to be dug up.  If common sanitary sewer connections will be used, a 

joint use and maintenance agreement must be recorded.  Depending on the alignment of 

any joint use sanitary sewer, an access easement may need to be created across the 

frontage of a lot. 

 

The final fully executed plat must conform to county requirements for recording. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Subdivision Location Map 

2. Draft Plats 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Recommend approval. 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lot 

1, Block 2 and Lot 20, Block 3 of West Hills 

Estates First Addition 

 

  

Consent No. 11 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lot 1, Block 2 and Lot 20, Block 3 of West Hills 

Estates First Addition 

Page 2 of 4 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve replat of Lot 3, Block 1; Lot 1, Block 2 and Lot 20, Block 3 of West 

Hills Estates First Addition 

 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lot 1, Block 2 and Lot 20, Block 3 of West Hills 

Estates First Addition 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Replat of Lot 3, Block 1, Lot 1, Block 2 and Lot 20, Block 3 of West Hills 

Estates First Addition 

Page 4 of 4 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider Change Order No. 6 – final for a net decrease of $134,471.47 for the 

Water Meter Improvements Project. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Change Order No. 6 accepts the Contractor’s proposal responses for 

the additional work requested by the City at the Countryside Meter Vault as well as the costs incurred to 

provide two encoder signal splitters for the 2 Missouri West master meters to ensure MWWS was able to 

continue operating its existing AMR reading equipment in conjunction with the City AMI reading 

equipment.  Also included in this final change order is the balancing change order, attached. 

 

The Change Order affects the final contract price with a net decrease of $134,471.47 reducing the final 

contract price to $1,373,316.34, also adjusts Substantial Completion by 139 day to May 3, 2015 and final 

completion is adjusted by 10 days to September 10, 2015 for procurement and installation of the encoder 

signal splitters. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 Letter of Recommendation from AE2S 

 Change Order No. 6 

 Change order summery for project 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The total approved SRF Loan = $2,400,000. 

    

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  WCD No. 6 has been forwarded to Attorney Brown.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend approval of Change Order No. 6 – Final to Thirkettle Corporation 

for the Water Meter Improvements Project as presented. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve Change Order No. 6 to Thirkettle Corporation for the Water 

Meter Improvements Project as presented. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to 

Thirkettle Corporation for the Water Meter 

Improvements Project 

 

  

Consent No. 12 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 2 of 9 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 3 of 9 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 4 of 9 

 
 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider for approval Change Order No. 6-Final to Thirkettle Corporation for 

the Water Meter Improvements Project 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Consider budget transfer from 2016 Street Department 

Capital Outlay budget to 2015 budget for the purchase of office reception furniture and 

chairs. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The above office furniture was approved in the 

2016 Street Department Capital Outlay budget.  We had stumbled onto a state demo set 

of office furniture that was priced at $4,700 at Brown and Saenger, in Mandan, they only 

wanted $3,000, a really good discount, and they agreed to hold the furniture until the 

2016 Budget was approved. Along with the furniture, they also had 4 chairs that would 

work in our office for $100 apiece. Miscellaneous desk accessories will round off the 

$3,500 request.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $3,500.00, from the approved 2016 Street Department Capital Outlay 

budget. 

 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend approval of budget transfer from 2016 Street 

Department Capital Outlay budget to 2015 budget of $3,500.00. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve budget transfer from 2016 Street Department 

Capital Outlay budget to 2015 budget of $3,500.00. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Consider budget transfer from 2016 Street 

Department Capital Outlay budget to 2015 budget. 

 

  

Consent No. 13 

  



                                              

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a reduction in the structure value for the 

2015 year for Otis R Patton Jr property, due to assessment that was made as a 

street appraisal and final review completed. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #65-3954120 

Lot 2 Block 2 Nicola’s 4th Addition. 

 

Reason for abatement:  To lower the 2015 structure value from $162,500 to $97,900. 

After a complete review of Mr. Patton’s property to determine accuracy of our data and 

conducting a market analysis, I have arrived at a true and full value of $117,900 for the 

2015 year, rather than $182,500 for 2015 a difference of $64,600 in true & full value. 

  

ATTACHMENTS:    Application for 2015 and data sheet. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $900 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the true and full 

value for the 2015 year to Otis Patton Jr’s property values.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for the Otis Patton Jr’s 

property for the  2015 assessment year. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw 

SUBJECT: Reassessment Otis Patton Jr.  

 

  

Consent No. 14 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider a reduction in the structure value for the 2015 year for Otis R Patton Jr. 

property 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider a reduction in the structure value for the 2015 year for Otis R Patton Jr. 

property 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider a reduction in the structure value for the 2015 year for Otis R Patton Jr. 

property 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

 



 

 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: 

This request is to allow relocation of an existing detached garage.  The proposed location 

is in front and to the side of the house.  R7 zoning rules require that an accessory building 

be located behind the primary structure. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

This is a greater than 4 acre lot with the house located approximately in 

the center of the lot well back from the road.  There is an underground 

power line located where the garage would normally be placed.  There is 

also a drainage issue that limits the possible location of the garage. 

 

Other properties on both sides of the road have structures located much 

closer to the road than the proposed location of the garage. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Aerial photo location map 

2. Planning and Zoning staff report with supporting documentation 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously at their September 28, 2015 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker 

SUBJECT: Acting as the Board of Adjustment, consider for 

approval variance to allow a detached garage to be 

located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, 

Block 1, Patience Subdivision. 

 

  

Consent No. 15 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 2 of 9 

meeting to recommend granting this variance. 

 

Staff recommends granting this variance. 

 

Granting this variance is the minimum necessary to allow construction of the structure 

and is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this title and is not injurious to 

the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   

Move to grant variance to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary 

structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience Subdivision 

 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 3 of 9 

 
 

Application Details 

Applicant Owner Subdivision Legal Description 

Blaine Engelstad Blaine Engelstad Patience Lot 1, Block 1 

Location Proposed Land Use Parcel Size Number of Lots 

Highland Rd. Single-family 4.09 acres 1 
Existing Land 

Use 
Adjacent Land Uses 

Current 
Zoning 

Proposed 
Zoning 

Adjacent Zoning 

Single-
family 

residential & agriculture R7 R7 R7 

Fees Date Paid 
Adjacent Property Notification 

Sent 
Legal Notices Published 

    
 

Project Description 

Request 
 
The request is to allow relocation of the existing detached garage to a location in front of the 
primary structure so that a new attached garage can be built onto the primary structure. 
 
Reason for Request 
 
21-03-05 subsection 5 requires that all accessory buildings be located in the rear yard. 
 
Procedure 
 
21-06-02 subsection 2 provides a procedure for granting a variance. 
 

Variances.  On appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination made by 
an administrative official, the board of adjustment may vary or adjust the strict 
application of any of the requirements of this title in the case of an exceptionally 
irregular, narrow, shallow or steep lot or other exceptional physical or topographical 
condition, by reason of which the strict application of the provisions of the title would 
result in unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the 
land or building involved, but in no other case.  No adjustment in the strict application of 
any provisions of this title shall be granted by the board of adjustment unless it finds: 
a. That there are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings of 

the board, applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which 
circumstances or conditions are peculiar to such land or building, and do not apply 
generally to land or buildings in the neighborhood, and have not resulted from any 
act of the applicant taken subsequent to the adoption of this title, whether in 
violation of the provisions of the title, or not; 

b. That, for reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances or 
conditions so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this title 
would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of said land or building, and the 
granting of the variance is necessary for the reasonable use of the land or building, 
and that the variance as granted by the board is the minimum variance that will 
accomplish the relief sought by the applicant; 

c. That the grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and 
intent of this title, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 4 of 9 

detrimental to the public welfare. 
 
Justification for granting variance 
 

a. The primary structure was placed well back from the road in the center of an over 4 
acre parcel. 

b. Neighboring lots have structures closer to the road than the proposed garage would 
be. 

c. There is a new rerouted power line in the area to the side of the primary structure 
where this garage would normally be located. 

d. The area to the side of the primary structure is a low, wet area. 
 

Agency & Other Department Comments 

 
Engineering & Planning Staff Comments 

 
Engineering & Planning Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of this variance request 
Proposed Motion 

Move to recommend that the city commission approve a variance to allow placement of an 
accessory building garage in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 
Subdivision 
 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 5 of 9 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 6 of 9 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 7 of 9 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 8 of 9 

 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Variance request to allow a detached garage to be located in front of the primary structure on Lot 1, Block 1, Patience 

Subdivision 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a Visitors Committee recommendation for 

updated visitor signage and issuance of a request for proposals. 

 

The Visitors Committee provides recommendations to the City Commission in 

administering proceeds from the 1 percent city restaurant and lodging tax. Funds may be 

used for capital construction and promotion projects to attract visitors to the community 

to use travel and tourism facilities. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Visitors Fund Committee met Aug. 25, 2015. 

Among agenda items was consideration of a request for visitor signage to provide a 

welcome, direction to visitors for various attractions and destinations, and a sense of 

community branding and character. The request was presented by the Mandan Tomorrow 

– Leadership, Pride and Image Committee. The committee had previously been asked by 

city and park district administrators to undertake the project to update Mandan’s visitor 

signage. The committee had studied potential locations and sign content, but recognized 

that professional services were needed with respect to the engineering, design and 

installation of the signs. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Draft request for proposals for Mandan signage 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no cost to issuing an RFP. The probably cost of the project 

itself, based on a preliminary, informal estimate from a local engineering firm, is 

approximately $175,000 to $200,000. The Visitors’ Promotion Capital Construction Fund 

had a balance of $940,162 at the time of the committee meeting. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 1, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Visitors Committee Recommendation on Visitor 

Signage & Issuance of a Request for Proposals 

 

  

New Business No. 1  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Visitor Committee Recommendation 

Page 2 of 2 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Some staff time will be required for review of proposals and 

coordination of the selection process plus for project oversight. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Legal review is pending. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Visitors Committee voted to recommend support of the 

visitor sign project and the issuance of a request for proposals for subsequent review by 

the committee. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to issue a request for proposals for new visitor welcome 

and way finding signage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF MANDAN 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

WELCOME & WAYFINDING SIGN SURVEYING, DESIGN, FABRICATION & INSTALLATION 
 

1. INVITATION & INTENT 
The City of Mandan invites all interested, qualified persons or firms capable of providing the 
required services and products to submit proposals. The city is seeking proposals from 
engineering firms and sign manufacturers/fabricators with expertise in municipal way finding to 
prepare and produce welcome and way finding signs for the City. The purpose of this program 
is to establish a unified signage system throughout the city with signs placed at key locations to 
help direct residents and visitors to important city destinations. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
The City of Mandan has a population of 20,820, according to a 2014 Census estimate. Mandan 
offers economic opportunity, a strong sense of community, widespread fun and possibilities for 
achievement. Mandan will always be ―Where the West Begins,‖ but we also strive to market 
community attributes that speak to the needs and wants for residents, businesses and visitors. 
 

Mandan’s existing way-finding signs that provide a welcome, 
direction to visitors for various attractions, and a sense of 
community branding and character have become dated in 
appearance and content. The community has relocated some 
features and added new features, but the signs aren’t easily 
adaptable to indicate these changes. The signs are also too few 
in number and locations given community growth. 
 
 

New signs are among recommendations in a recently adopted Mandan Land Use and 
Transportation Plan. Goal 7 states: ―Ensure that the City’s aesthetic character for residents, 
visitors and business patrons is enhanced through high quality development and infrastructure 
and the visual attractiveness of key corridors.‖ The plan goes on to explain, ―Physical character 
and identity affects quality of life and business success. At entrances and key corridors in 
Mandan, it is important to create an attractive setting.‖ Recommended policies include: 

 Develop a plan to keep the City’s gateways attractive by maintaining and enhancing 
signage, landscaping, or other features at key City entrances. 

 Include improved signage in beautification efforts to direct residents and visitors to 
activity areas, landmarks, and downtown. 

 
  



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

2 
 

3. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
All RFP submittals shall provide the following information at a minimum to be considered: 
 

a) Introductory Letter. A letter summarizing the firm’s background, available resources 
and relevant experience in surveying, site evaluation for signage, plus the design, 
manufacture/fabrication and installation of way-finding signage, and final landscaping. 
Provide a brief narrative highlighting the firm’s experience with similar and relevant 
projects, as well as a description of the approach the firm will take for completion of the 
project. Also include a summary of any sub-contracting firm’s qualifications and contact 
information. 

 
b) Project Schedule. The anticipated timeline is as follows: 

 Issue request for proposals — Oct. 7, 2015 

 Proposals due — Nov. 9, 2015 

 Staff review/Visitor Fund Committee review and recommendation — Nov. 10-12, 
2015 

 Consideration of recommendation for contract for visitor signage by City Commission 
— Nov. 17, 2015 

 Preliminary design concepts — February 2016 

 Surveying, location determination — (may be weather dependent) April 2016 

 Sign fabrication — June 2016 

 Sign installation — July 2016 

 Landscaping around signs if needed and as appropriate to size of sign and site — 
August 2016 

 
c) Schedule and Budget. Provide a project schedule with a detailed explanation of how 

the project logistics will be met and itemized costs for all elements listed in the scope of 
work. Costs per site should be provided as well as a lump sum for the total cost of all 
work described in the proposal.  

 
Submit proposals to the City of Mandan Business Development and Communications Office, 
Mandan City Hall, 205 Second Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554 until Monday, November 9, 
2015, at 5 p.m. Proposals should be clearly labeled ―Proposal for Mandan Way Finding Signs‖ 
and directed to Ellen Huber, Business Development and Communications Director.  
    
4. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

a) Site evaluation 

 Evaluate up to 15 locations as potential sites for signs. This includes identification of 
property ownership and right-of-way, particularly whether local, state or federal, and 
coordination with such entities. The sight evaluation should take into consideration 
any utility or easement restrictions, grades, traffic patterns and speeds, sight/visibility 
issues and other factors. 

 Provide recommendations as to the feasibility of requested locations. 

 For feasible sites, provide a site layout and placement plan to include orientation. 

 Obtain approvals as needed from a traffic engineer. 
 

b) Sign design and engineering 

 Provide a unified signage design representative of the city’s identity and consistent in 
color, font, materials, architectural elements and graphics. Signs should incorporate 
destinations that make sense for the location of the sign. Signs should be durable, 



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

3 
 

adaptable/updateable and reflective. Provide at least two initial signage design 
concepts for City review and consideration. 

 Provide sign foundation and support design with review by a structural engineer as 
needed. 

 Coordinate review of sign design and permitting with NDDOT, county and city as 
needed. 

 Provide detailed specifications in a final design intent drawing (exact dimensions, 
letter heights, materials, mounting details, color specifications, and material 
performance standards). 

 
c) Sign manufacture/fabrication 

 Provide up to 15 signs to the sites to include any shipping and handling. Final 
quantity and size will depend upon the feasibility of sites and site layouts. 

 
d) Sign installation 

 Install signs according to placement plan. 
 

e) Landscaping 

 Design, coordinate, monitor and provide for landscape installation around signs 
where the surrounding environment and size of the sign warrant landscaping. 
Assume a landscaped area extending up to six feet from one side of each sign.  

 
5. EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 
The City of Mandan will evaluate proposals based on the following criteria: 

 Cost to the City 

 Responsiveness to City specifications and needs 

 Past experience 

 Ability to provide requested services and signs by or in advance of proposed timeline 
 
The City of Mandan reserves the right to determine the suitability of all proposals on the basis of 
these criteria or other criteria that it may deem important not included in the above list. During 
the evaluation process, the City of Mandan may request additional information or clarifications 
from the proposers for the intent of making a decision. 
 
The City reserves the right to: 

 Modify or cancel the selection process or schedule at any time; 

 Waive minor irregularities 

 Reject any and/or all responses to this RFP and to seek new proposals when it is in the 
best interest of the City to do so; 

 Negotiate modifications to the RFP with the selected respondent as part of the 
negotiation process. 

 
6. INQUIRIES 
Inquiries regarding the RFP should be directed to City of Mandan Business Development and 
Communications Director Ellen Huber at 701-667-3485 or ehuber@cityofmandan.com. 
  

mailto:ehuber@cityofmandan.com


RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

4 
 

APPENDIX A – Map 
 
 

 
 

  



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

5 
 

 

APPENDIX B – Sign location list 
 

1. I-94/Sunset intersection at Sunset Drive & Boundary Rd 
2. I-94/Sunset intersection at Sunset Drive and Old Red Trail 
3. Collins Avenue (Hwy 1806) and Old Red Trail 
4. I-94 Exit 153 at Mandan Avenue (south side of interstate) 
5. Sunset Drive & 6th Ave NW 
6. Downtown — Sixth Ave NW & Main 
7. Downtown — 10th Avenue  NW & Main 
8. Downtown — Sixth Ave SE & Main (SW quadrant) 
9. Downtown — Sixth Ave SE & Main (SE quadrant) 
10. Downtown — intersection of Mandan Avenue, Memorial Hwy & Main St. 
11. Hwy 10/10th Ave SW at Third St SW intersection (or another intersection along Hwy 10) 
12. Hwy 1806/Sixth Ave SE at Third St SE intersection 
13. Memorial Highway & Third St SE (near McDonald’s) 
14. Memorial Highway & 46th Ave SE 
15. Expressway at McKenzie exit — preferably both east and west ramp areas if feasible 

 
  



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

6 
 

APPENDIX C — Photos of potential Locations 

 



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

7 
 

 

 

 



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

8 
 

 

 



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

9 
 

 

 



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

10 
 

 

 



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

11 
 

 

 

 



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

12 
 

 
APPENDIX C – Destination list 
 
Note: There may be variation from sign to sign depending upon location and size of signs 
 

1. Harmon Lake 
2. High School, Ice Arena, Aquatic Center (Would need to be updated with new sports 

complex to open the fall of 2017) 
3. Dykshoorn & Heritage Parks 
4. Main Street, Downtown 
5. Football & Track Field (Would need to be updated with new sports complex to open the 

fall of 2017)   
6. Water Park 
7. Middle School, Ft. Lincoln Elementary School 
8. N.D. Veterans Cemetery 
9. Racing, Rodeo, Soccer (Dacotah Centennial Park) 
10. Ft. Lincoln State Park 
11. Ball Diamonds (baseball, softball) 
12. Golf 
13. Other considerations: 

o Library 
o Post office 

 
  



RFP – MANDAN WAY FINDING SIGNS — DRAFT 

13 
 

APPENDIX D – Sign content and design guidelines 
 

1. Signs should include the City of Mandan logo with the ―Where the West 
Begins‖ slogan 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2. Signs may also include the community marketing theme ―FUN: MADE 
IN MANDAN‖ with the logo, utilizing the red color for consistency with other 
community marketing materials. 
 

 
3. Changeable copy or the ability to update. 

 
4. City’s web address may be included (www.cityofmandan.com). 

 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/


 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider changing the name of the Mandan Band Shell to 

the Vern Cermak Band Shell. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Please see attached request from the Bismarck 

Mandan Musicians Association regarding the positive things Mr. Cermak has brought to 

the community and request to name the Band Shell the Vern Cermak Band Shell. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Letter dated September 17, 2015 from Bismarck Mandan 

Musicians Association 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a – if approved costs will be paid for by the Musicians Association. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: should the Commission decide to change the name from the 

Mandan Band Shell, I move to change the name of the Mandan Band Shell to the “Vern 

Cermak Band Shell” to recognize the work of keeping it in operation for the past 21 years 

and a place he calls home. 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 1, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Steve Harmon, President, Bismarck Mandan 

Musicians Association 

SUBJECT: Consider name change from Mandan Band Shell to 

Vern Cermak Band Shell 

 

  

New Business No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider name change from Mandan Band Shell to Vern Cermak Band Shell 

Page 2 of 3 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Consider name change from Mandan Band Shell to Vern Cermak Band Shell 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To present project concept and to decide on items in order to 

move forward with design. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The section of Old Red Trail between Highland 

Road and 47
th

 Avenue NW is in poor shape and is becoming insufficient to handle the 

volumes of traffic due to the new development in that area. The condition of this section 

was considered inadequate by the condition assessment study done in 2012.  

 

The city has been approved by the NDDOT within their Transportation Improvement 

Program (TIP) to reconstruct Old Red Trail from Highland Road to as far as 47
th

 Avenue 

NW in 2016. The DOT has pledged $3.2M dollars of funding for this project. 

 

The city hired KLJ earlier this year for design of this project. KLJ has been working on 

design and estimate and is now to a point where critical decisions need to be made and 

documented with the NDDOT in order to proceed forward.  

 

The decisions to be made are shown within section H of the attached executive summary. 

In addition to those listed, city staff also recommends that the west limit of construction 

be just west of 40
th

 Avenue instead of the original west limit of 47
th

 Avenue NW. The 

average per lot assessment is projected to be near $3,000 if the limit were to 47
th

, whereas 

the average per lot assessment is projected to be near $1,000 if the limit were to 40
th

 

Avenue, refer to attachment 1 for a breakdown of cost and funding. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Preliminary Cost and Funding Breakdown 

2. Executive Summary 

 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Old Red Trail Reconstruction Presentation and 

Decisions Document 

 

  

New Business No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Old Red Trail Reconstruction Presentation and Decisions Document 

Page 2 of 3 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve staff recommended decisions.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve staff recommended decisions for the Old 

Red Trail reconstruction project. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 

Subject: Old Red Trail Reconstruction Presentation and Decisions Document 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 



SU-1-988(040)051

Prepared for: 
City of Mandan

Prepared by: 
KLJ

HigHland Road to 47tH avenue noRtHwest

OLD RED TRAIL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



Urban Reconstruction  Page i 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Description Page 

Table of Contents .................................................................................................................................... i 

List of Tables ............................................................................................................................................ i 

List of Exhibits .......................................................................................................................................... i 

 

I. Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................... 1 

A. Project Description ....................................................................................................... 1 

B. Project Schedule ........................................................................................................... 1 

C. Purpose of Project ........................................................................................................ 1 

D. Need for Project ........................................................................................................... 1 

E. Funding ......................................................................................................................... 1 

F. Description of Alternatives ........................................................................................... 3 

1. Alternative A (No Build) ..........................................................................3 

2. Alternative B (Build) ...............................................................................3 

3. Optional Work Items ..............................................................................4 

4. Work Zone Traffic Control ......................................................................6 

5. Maintenance Responsibility Discussion .................................................6 

6. Summary of Environmental Issues: ........................................................7 

G. Public Concerns / Need for Public Input ...................................................................... 9 

H. City Decisions ................................................................................................................................. 10 

 

Appendices  

Appendix A Public Input Meeting Summary 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

 

Table 1, Pavement Life Cycle Costs Summary .............................................................................................. 4 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

 

Exhibit 1, Project Location Map .................................................................................................................... 2 

Exhibit 2, Typical Section .............................................................................................................................. 3 

Exhibit 3, 40th Avenue Intersection Options ................................................................................................. 5 

Exhibit 4,  Pedestrian Accommodations ....................................................................................................... 8 

  



Urban Reconstruction  Page 1 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

I. Executive Summary  

 

A. Project Description 

 

Roadway:  Old Red Trail  NDDOT District: Bismarck Project:  SU-1-988(040)051 

From: Highland Road to 47th Avenue Northwest  
 

See Exhibit 1, Project Location Map. 

 

Project Current ADT (2016) Forecast ADT (2040) 

SU-1-988(040)051 Total: 3,800; Trucks: 152 Total: 14,400; Trucks: 450 

 

B. Project Schedule 

 

Project Plans Complete Bid Opening 

SU-1-988(040)051 Spring 2016  Spring 2016 

 

C. Purpose of Project 

 

The purpose of the proposed project is to reconstruct Old Red Trail to accommodate the increased 

transportation and pedestrian demand in the area. The project would increase the capacity of the 

roadway, correct roadway deficiencies and improve pedestrian facilities.  

 

D. Need for Project 

 

The need for the proposed project is driven by increases in traffic and pedestrian movements due to rapid 

growth in northwest Mandan; social and economic demands of growth near the Red Trail Elementary 

School; and roadway deficiencies attributed to having a rural roadway section within an urban area. The 

existing roadway geometry does not provide the capacity needed to meet the future traffic demands. The 

current average daily traffic (ADT) count is projected to more than triple by 2040, from 3,800 to 14,400 

vehicles per day. Deficiencies with the current roadway corridor include lack of turn lanes, limited 

pedestrian facilities and crossing opportunities, and inadequate drainage infrastructure that contributes 

to roadway flooding. 

 

E. Funding  

 

2016-2019 STIP:  $4,000,000 Total; 

$3,200,000 Federal Funds (capped) 

$800,000 City Funds 

 

2015 Estimated Costs:  $6,200,000 to $7,000,000 construction cost 

$7,400,000 to $8,100,000 total cost (includes engineering, right of way and `

 utility relocations) 

 



Urban Reconstruction  Page 2 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

 
Exhibit 1, Project Location Map 

 



Urban Reconstruction  Page 3 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

F.  Description of Alternatives 

 

1. Alternative A (No Build) 

 

Alternative A consists of the No Build alternative. Old Red Trail from Highland Road to 47th Avenue 

Northwest would not be reconstructed with Alternative A. Current geometry does not address the 

capacity, roadway deficiencies or social demand/economic development. Alternative A would not meet 

the project’s purpose and need. 

 

2. Alternative B (Build) 

 

Alternative B would consist of reconstructing Old Red Trail from Highland Road to 47th Avenue Northwest 

to a three-lane section with a flush median. The section would consist of two 12.5-foot wide driving lanes, 

a center 12-foot wide left-turn lane; 12-foot wide westbound right turn lanes at 47th Avenue Northwest, 

40th Avenue Northwest and 37th Avenue Northwest; and a 12-foot wide eastbound right turn lane at 30th 

Avenue Northwest. See Exhibit 2, Typical Section.  

 

Additional improvements would include curb and gutter, storm sewer, LED lighting system, landscaping 

and a shared-use path along the south side of the roadway.  The existing curb and gutter roadway from 

Highland Road to 37th Street Northwest would be re-striped to match the proposed 3-lane section on Old 

Red Trail.  The existing wood pole mounted luminaries would be replaced by breakaway light standards 

with LED luminaires. As part of the shared-use path, two additional pedestrian crossings would be 

provided across Old Red Trail at the intersection of Old Red Trail and Crown Point Road and at the 

intersection of Old Red Trail and 40th Avenue Northwest in addition to the existing crossing at 37th Avenue 

NW.

 
 

Exhibit 2, Typical Section  



Urban Reconstruction  Page 4 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

3. Optional Work Items 

 

Option 1: Pavement Surfacing Section: This option compares an asphalt roadway section to a concrete 

roadway section. A comparison was made between an asphalt pavement section, consisting of 5.5 inches 

of fine angular aggregate (FAA) 45 hot mix asphalt (HMA) on 18 inches of dense graded base, against a 

concrete section consisting of 8.5 inches of doweled non-reinforced Portland cement concrete (PCC) 

pavement on 12 inches of dense graded base. While the concrete option has an initial cost $670,000 

greater than asphalt, when factoring in the increased maintenance costs associated with asphalt, the 

present worth value of concrete is $50,000 less than asphalt. See Table 1, Pavement Life Cycle Costs 

Summary.  

Table 1, Pavement Life Cycle Costs Summary 

Analysis 

Method 

Pavement 1A 

(Asphalt Option) 

Pavement 1B 

(Concrete  Option) 

Difference 

(1A-1B) 

Initial Cost $1,906,166 $2,574,832 $(668,666) 

In-Service Costs $1,566,768 $320,000 $1,246,768 

Total Expenditures $3,472,934 $2,894,832 $578,102 

Present Worth $2,779,307 $2,721,941 $57,366 

Annual Cost $160,728 $157,410 $3,318 

 

Option 2: 40th Avenue Intersection: 40th Avenue NW is classified as a collector and the traffic along 40th 

Avenue NW is expected to continue to grow as the further development occurs north of Old Red Trail. 

South of Old Red Trail, 40th Avenue terminates at 43rd Street NW frontage road and resumes again 160 

feet east to serve the residential development to the south. There is limited traffic on 40th Avenue that 

merely crosses Old Red Trail with the majority of movements turning onto or off of Old Red Trail. There 

was no documented crash history at this intersection indicating issues with the current configuration.  The 

following access revisions are presented and shown below. See Exhibit 3, 40th Avenue Intersection 

Options.  

 

2A: Maintain Existing Access Configuration 

Pros: 

• Maintain local driver expectancy 

• Direct crossing of Old Red Trail for 40th Avenue NW traffic 

Cons: 

• Limited stacking distance between Old Red Trail and 43rd Street NW. Issue would be more critical 

if the intersection with Old Red Trail were signalized in the future. 

• Potentially confusing assignment of right of way between 40th Avenue NW and 43rd Street. 

 

2B: Close South Access 

Pros: 

• Cost savings by not replacing approach 

• Reduce access points along Old Red Trail 

Cons: 

• Non continuous 40th Avenue  

• Displaces vehicle trips to adjacent intersections with Old Red Trail 

• Increase traveling distance/time for some residential trafficNon continuous 40th Avenue 



Urban Reconstruction  Page 5 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

 
Exhibit 3, 40th Avenue Intersection Options  



Urban Reconstruction  Page 6 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

2C: Offset T-Intersection with 40th Avenue NW 

Pros: 

• The majority movement on 40th Avenue NW of northbound to eastbound right turns can be made 

without impacting other intersections 

• Eastbound and westbound left turn movements can que without conflicting with each other 

• No impacts from south approach to potential signalization of 40th Avenue (north approach) 

• Reduced conflict points 

• Assigns right of way to 40th Avenue NW over 43rd Street NW 

Cons: 

• “Jog” in 40th Avenue NW occurs on Old Red Trail rather than less traveled 43rd Street NW 

 

According to FHWA’s “Signalized Intersections: Information Guide” (August 2004) converting a four-leg 

intersection to two T-intersections reduces the number of conflict points from 32 to 18. A referenced 

study by Hanna et al. (1976), showed that collision rates at offset T intersections in both signalized and 

unsignalized intersections were approximately 43 percent lower than at comparable four-leg 

intersections. There is no documented crash history now at this intersection, but it has the potential to 

increase as development occurs and traffic increases.  

 

Option 3: Install 12-Inch Watermain: There is an existing 6-inch watermain, serving the developments 

along Old Red Trail, which runs along the north edge of the corridor. This watermain is undersized to serve 

anticipated development in the surrounding areas. The existing watermain needs to be upgraded to a 12-

inch main to meet the needs of future development. The watermain could be replaced with this project 

or could be constructed with a separate future project. The watermain would be located in the north 

boulevard to minimize impacts to improvements that are being made along the Old Red Trail. The 

estimated cost to construct the watermain would be $500,000. 

 

4. Work Zone Traffic Control 

The roadway would be closed to through traffic during construction. The road closure would coincide 

with school being closed for summer. A signed detour would be in place for local traffic. The detour 

route would utilize local streets within the proximity of Old Red Trail and additional delay would be 

minimal to local traffic. Two-way traffic would be maintained on Old Red Trail when school is in session. 

The shared-use path would be closed during construction and a detour would not be provided. 

 

5. Maintenance Responsibility Discussion  

 

The City of Mandan would be responsible for maintenance of the project.  

  



Urban Reconstruction  Page 7 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

 

6. Summary of Environmental Issues:  

 

Section 4(f) 

The proposed project would impact the Old Red Trail Section One, a shared-use path owned by the City 

of Mandan and managed by the Mandan Parks and Recreation. The roadway reconstruction would require 

approximately 2,000 feet of shared-use path reconstruction from 475 feet south of Highland Road to 34th 

Avenue Northwest due to changes in roadway width and grade. See Exhibit 4, Pedestrian 

Accommodations.  

 

Old Red Trail Section One connects to the to the existing, larger trail system that Mandan Parks and 

Recreation uses to connect people and neighborhoods to parks, open space and other public facilities. 

The proposed improvements would include temporarily impacting approximately 2,000 feet of the 

shared-use path and being closed during reconstruction. No additional right-of-way would be required 

and disturbance would be limited to the 10-foot width. 

 

Wetlands  

All wetlands within the project have been identified by the US Army Corps of Engineers as non-

jurisdictional. Impacts to wetlands include approximately 0.20 acres of temporary impacts and 0.47 acres 

of permanent impacts. Impacts to natural wetlands will be mitigated onsite or in a bank.  

 

Trees 

The reconstruction would require the removal of five trees; including Siberian Elm, green ash, Eastern 

cottonwood and peachleaf willow.  

 



Urban Reconstruction  Page 8 

Project No. SU-1-988(040)051  PCN 20854 

October 2015  Executive Summary 

 
 

Exhibit 4, Pedestrian Accommodations



 

G. Public Concerns / Need for Public Input 

 

A solicitation of views package was sent to federal, state, local agencies, emergency services, transit and 

other interested parties on June 15, 2015. The scoping package included a brief description of the 

proposed project; as well as a project location map.  

 

In addition, utilities, local emergency services, schools and transit were contacted regarding this project 

through the Solicitation of Views process. During construction, these entities would be invited to a weekly 

team meeting to discuss updates on construction and potential issues to their services. 

 

At the conclusion of the 30-day comment period, eight responses were received. These comments provide 

valuable insight into the evaluation of potential environmental impacts and help ensure that social, 

economic and environmental effects were taken into consideration in the development of this project. 

The comments were considered within the environmental impact categories addressed in this document.  

 

A Public Input Meeting was held on August 20, 2015 at the Red Trail Elementary School. A direct mailing 

was sent to all adjacent and potentially impacted landowners and businesses near the reconstruction area 

informing them of the public input meeting. The purpose of the meeting was to initiate early and open 

communication with the public about the project. The meeting was held with an open house format 

during which participates were able to talk with the project team individually. A formal presentation was 

given and an informational handout was also available. A total of 64 people attended the meeting and 

three comments were received during the two-week comment period that followed. The public 

comments included concerns revolving around the cost and funding of the project, access and detour 

routes during construction, drainage and shared-use path maintenance. Please refer to Appendix A, 

Public Input Comments. 

  



 

 

H. City Decisions  

 

1. Do you concur with the project concepts as proposed? 

 

_ X__ Yes 

 

_____ No 

 

2. Which alternative should proceed with the project? 

 

_____ Alternative A – No-Build Alternative 

• This alternative would leave the road as it exists today. 

• The estimated cost for this alternative is $0. 

 

__X__ Alternative B – Build Alternative Three-Lane Roadway Section 

• The estimated total cost for this alternative is $8,100,000 

• This cost includes concrete pavement as the surfacing option 

 

3. Option 1: Which pavement surfacing section should be constructed with this project?  

 

__ ___ 1A: Asphalt Pavement 

• Initial cost of $1,906,166 

• Present day value of total expenditures $2,779,307 

 

__ __ 1B: Concrete Pavement 

• Initial cost of $2,574,832 

• Present day value of total expenditures $2,721,941 

 

__X__ 1C: Bid Concrete and Asphalt Pavement as Alternatives 

• Additional engineering cost of $18,000 to prepare bidding documents for both 

alternatives. 

 

4. Option 2: Which option should be constructed for the 40th Avenue Intersection?  

 

__X _ 2A: Maintain Existing Access Configuration 

• Estimated cost of $35,500 

 

_____2B: Close South Access 

• Estimated total cost of $27,700 

 

_____2C: Left-Right Offset T-Intersection with 40th Avenue NW 

• Estimated total cost of $45,500 

  



 

 

5. Option 3: Should a new 12-inch water main be constructed with this project? 

 

__X__ Yes: Install Water Main 

• Estimated cost of $500,000 

 

_____ No: Install Water Main with Separate Project 

 

 

Amendments/Comments for Project No. SU-1-988(040)051: 

 

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

              

 

 

 

 

    

Arlyn Van Beek, Mayor  Date  

City of Mandan 

  



 

 

APPENDICES 



 

Appendix A 

Public Input Comments 

 

 

 

  

 

 



Meeting Minutes 

Old Red Trail – Highland Road to 47th Avenue NW 
Public Input Meeting #1  
SU-1-988(040)051; PCN 20854 
 

Date:  8/20/2015 

Time:  5:00-7:00 PM 

Facilitator: Jim Jackson, PE  

Room: Red Trail Elementary School Cafeteria  

 

Question and Answer Session 

A Public Input Meeting was held on August 20, 2015 at Red Trail Elementary School. A direct 

mailing was sent to all landowners within the adjacent subdivisions along the project area 

along with the local public officials informing them of the public input meeting. The purpose 

of this meeting was to initiate early and open communication with the public about the 

project, inform the public of the project and receive comments on the project and 

alternatives. The meeting was held with an open house format during which participants were 

able to talk with the project team individually. A formal presentation was given at 5:30 pm 

and an informational handout was also available. A total of 64 people attended the meeting 

and three comments were received during the two-week comment period that followed. Most 

discussion related to the special assessments for the project. 

 

The following is a summary of the question and answer session help during the public input 

meeting. Responses were collectively given by the project team. Written comments that were 

received are attached at the end of the memo. 

 

Comment: Audrey Willhelm (Highland Road) When Highland Road was paved, they paid $9,000 

and when Old Red Trail was paved, they paid for $11,000 for a total of $20,000. When 

Highland Road was paved the people paid for it, $20,000 in special assessments, will people 

be paying for this project? 

Response: There likely will be an assessment for this project. The City doesn’t know the 

assessment district boundary yet because the project length and cost has not been 

determined. Decisions will be made in the next couple of months. After the decisions are 

made, the estimate can be updated. The process will be similar to what has happened in the 

past. Landowners will get notified in the mail and will have the opportunity to protest it. The 

project is not to that point yet. 

 



Page 2 of 9 

Comment: Bruce Meyer (40th Avenue) How long will construction take? 

Response: The construction should last one construction season.  

 

Comment: Mark Landis (Roughrider Addition) –Crown Point Road to 56th Avenue is paved, but 

it is not in the best condition. This project goes to 47th Avenue. He expressed that he would 

like to see the project go all the way to 56th Avenue.  

Response: This project has only been approved to the project limit of 47th Avenue NW. 

 

Comment: Blaine Engelstad (Highland Road) Tentative underpass aligned with 34th. Are you 

planning on trying to do that? 

Response: We are aware of some of those tentative plans. As of now, those plans will not be 

incorporated as part of this project as they are beyond the limits and scope of this project. 

 

Comment: Frank Saule (Roughrider) – Where does the 14,400 traffic come from? 

Response: The MPO which consists of Mandan, Morton, Burleigh, Lincoln, and Bismarck all put 

money together to fund projects such as the Long Range Transportation Plan and the traffic 

model. So most of the traffic that is showing up (14,400) compared to what is there today is 

based on the section of land between Old Red Trail and Highland Road being converted to a 

residential land use. People wanting to go to other areas of Mandan would use Old Red Trail 

to make those trips. The model does not have an underpass at 30th so all that traffic is what is 

in this area.  

 

Comment: James Weigel (37th Avenue) The detour is on 37th Street. The condition of 37th 

Street is already pretty poor and will be worse after the detour traffic is on it. Are there any 

plans to reconstruct 37th Avenue after the detour is done? 

Response: 37th Street will act as a detour road. There shouldn’t be truck traffic on it. The 

city has discussed a project on 37th Street. Using this as a detour route will get additional 

local traffic. There was a street improvement project planned for 37th Street last year but the 

bids came back high. Rather than revise the project and come back with a different scope, 

they decided to wait and do the Old Red Trail project first, since it was programmed in and 

they would receive federal dollars. 37th Street project will go on hold since it would act as a 

detour for this project. The plan would be to revive the project after the Old Red Trail 

project is completed and fix some of the local roads in the area. 

Comment: There was a protest for that project. I remember signing it. 

 

Comment: Alex Neigum (3300 Block of Old Red Trail) Four lane causes faster traffic, why is it 

going to three lane road instead of four lane road. Squeezing traffic from four lane road onto 

a two lane road has created a problem. Explain how this project wouldn’t continue to cause 



Page 3 of 9 

this problem. Did you consider the impact of keeping the transition from a four lane roadway 

to a three lane roadway? 

Response: Capacity of a three lane road with a center left turn lane is similar to the capacity 

of a four lane road. The transition may not be as ideal, but there would be less right of way 

impacts with a similar capacity by constructing a three lane roadway as compared to a four 

lane roadway. Economically, it makes more sense, since it can handle the traffic without 

building a wider road.  

Originally four lane roads were seen as being able to move a lot of traffic but in reality that 

inside lane becomes a de facto left turn lane so then there is driver aggressiveness jockeying 

for position knowing there will be left turns on the inside lane. The NDDOT did a statewide 

safety project that has identified these road sections as one of the easiest recommendations 

to make, turning those four lane roads into three lane roads. If the whole thing was a three 

lane, you wouldn’t have any of that jockeying for position since you would stay in the same 

lane throughout the area. As part of this project, we are looking into how to convert the 

intersection of 37th Street into a three lane instead of the four lane that is there. There are 

proposed safety projects to convert the four lane into a three lane all the way down to the 

interstate and Sunset, however that is outside the boundaries of this project.  

 

Comment: Dale Munson (41st Avenue NW) Has there been a study done on road surface 

underneath of Old Red Trail? During the spring and summer there are a bunch of heaves along 

Old Red Trail. Are they going to be able to remedy this in some way? From Highland to 37th 

Street, is it going to be striped as a two lane with a center left turn lane? 

Response: Highland would be striped as a three lane. There is enough width to restripe it to a 

three lane road. Generally in the past, we have had success with obliterating the existing 

road bed all the way down and blending it with new material. It’s not just going to be 

removing the pavement that is there and putting new pavement on top, it will be 

reconstructing the road bed.  

 

Comment: Pat Schwartzberger (36th Avenue) You showed $4.0 million that is currently 

allocated for the project and the project cost is $8.1 million. How is the $4 million difference 

going to be funded? Is it going to be special assessed to certain parts of the city of Mandan or 

the whole city of Mandan?  

Response: We don’t have an answer yet and the district lines haven’t been drawn yet. The 

project cost includes everything from 37th Street up to Highland as a striping project and from 

Highland to 47th Avenue as a reconstruct. One option currently being evaluated is to start 

from Highland Road and see how far west $4 million will go and then performing a future 

project to take care of the rest. 

Comment: Usually special assessments are about $2,000 more per household than what is 

expected. How are they going to estimate a close figure for what will be special assessed? Are 



Page 4 of 9 

they going to come up with the actual figure, or will it be a close figure with the 1% interest 

and the actual number will come later? 

Response: We will have an answer to the project limits in a few months. The City and KLJ 

will work together to set the potential special assessment districts and cost with the project 

estimate. The residents in the special assessment district would be notified with the most 

accurate cost pre bid. This project is looking at an early spring bid letting. The City of 

Mandan has rejected bids in the past when they come in too high. Analyze the bid, if it’s 

reasonable, then the project moves forward with it. There is also the protest period.  

Comment: What would be reasonable as far as putting this burden on every household? What 

is the danger price as far as special assessments? The special assessments had doubled 

compared to what was expected. How strongly will the City be working with KLJ as far as 

putting the prices out? How will it get to the citizens? Will a letter be mailed out? 

Response: A letter will be sent to everyone in the district. It notifies them that they are 

within a special assessment district. The special assessment district is then given the 

opportunity to protest.  

Comment: Will you lose federal money if you don’t do the project? 

Response: The 3.2 million federal funding would be jeopardized if we don’t do the project. 

So some form of the project we discuss tonight we are hoping to move forward with. For this 

project we get 80% federal share and 20% local. Recent past project have used property tax 

and sales tax money to 10% and special assess the remaining 10%. That will likely be the case 

for this project. The number is something that the City and KLJ will need to work on for the 

next few months. 

 

Comment: James Weigel – Explain the process. What is the time frame for planning it? What 

are the drawbacks to waiting and analyzing the project longer? Consider reapplying for the 

project. What would the time frame be for doing that? What options are included in the 

preliminary constructions cost? None of the options have much of a shoulder. Still need to 

drive until you find an approach somewhere to pull off.  

Response: Construction costs include watermain, full length of project, and storm water 

improvements. The cost is separated into the two different pavement options. As far as 

programming for budgets – the City works with MPO to put together a list of projects to 

submit to the NDDOT to put in their TIP (Transportation Improvement Program) list. 

Programmed out 4 years ahead. Each year the MPO goes through and reprograms for the next 

4 years. If the City chooses to wait and not do this project and wait to get more funding to 

make sure the project goes all the way to 47th, run the risk of losing the project for perhaps 

another 4 years or more. The city allocation for urban road projects is a little under 1 million 

dollars and the money would need to be pooled again to get a project of similar size or 

bigger. 

 



Page 5 of 9 

Comment: Alex Neigum (3300 ORT) – When the other portion of Old Red Trail was 

constructed, the residents were informed it was going to cost them $8,000. The first bill was 

about $27,000. Informed other attendees that they need to show up to the meetings and 

know what is going on. The former city engineer said that if I told you the actual cost you 

would have protested it out.  

Response: Pulled all the files from the first Old Red Trail project. The high cost was from 

water and sewer and street project. There was a small amount that everyone in the city paid 

for with the previous Old Red Trail project. The rest of the street part was separated out as 

you got closer to the reconstructed cost. Roughriders Addition received $700 in special 

assessments and then the closer the residence was to the area, the more assessments they 

received. The majority of the cost was from the storm and water done at the same time. 

Comment: At the meetings they mentioned that storm and water was going to be put in, but 

they did not give us the cost. Be careful. There is not the whole cost. They only mention part 

of the cost. 

 

Comment: Is there going to be sewer and water at this project?  

Response: One of the decision items is replacing the existing watermain, updating the 

existing 6” watermain to 12” watermain.  

Comment: Are these costs added into this project right now? 

Response: The watermain is included as a part of the preliminary costs. The storm sewer is 

also a part of these estimates.  

 

Comment: Frank Saule (Roughrider) A project was built to pump our sewer into the city’s 

system. We used to have own system and the City took that system away. Is this part of the 

project? 

Response: Sanitary sewer is not part of this project. A lift station was put in last year and 

was funded by utility funds so it is not part of the cost of this project. The lift station allows 

the sewage to be pumped to the wastewater plant in SE Mandan. 

 

Comment: Ken Gieser (37th Street) – This project is in part because of all the anticipated 

development north of Old Red Trail up to Highland Road that is currently undeveloped, but 

the project cost will be put onto existing property owners. Existing property owners will be 

paying for development cost of undeveloped properties. The developers will not have to pay 

these costs but reap the benefits. 

Response: Not sure how districts are set up with undeveloped land. We are not able to 

special assess properties unless annexed to the city. If they are annexed to the city and would 

benefit from the project, then they would special assessed. One thing to keep in mind is that 

there is 80% federal funding, likely 10% from the property and sales tax, and the 10% 

remaining would be special assessed for benefiting properties.  



Page 6 of 9 

Comment: MPO says we need the project because the city will be expanding in that area. 

Then why do this project to benefit that area, and those developers will reap the benefits of 

the project and don’t have to pay for it. Mandan favors the developer. 

Response: Even if traffic remained at the 5,000 today that it is today, there is still a benefit 

to upgrading the road from its current two lane rural road. 

Comment: That’s a really expensive road. 

Response: There are benefits and costs to putting in a road. That’s why we are here to make 

informed decisions with that input in hand.  

Comment: How is the cost separated to those who benefit from the project? Why do we have 

roads improving access to those properties and the developers don’t need to pay for those 

improvements.  

Response: Thanks for the comment 

Comment: Only halfway through and everyone here will pay for it and someone else will 

make a lot of money based on what we are paying for. 

Response: Thank you. 

 

Comment: Ryan Kiser (34th Avenue) Discussed the development that will be occurring 

between Old Red Trail and Highland Road and the watermain expanding from 6” to 12”, do 

you know if that will be enough? Have there been studies done? Or will it need to be ripped 

out in a few years when it is not big enough? 

Response: The upsize from 6” to 12” – a consultant has studied it and that would be enough 

to feed the whole area north of the interstate, northwest Mandan.  

 

Comment: Is 12 inch really necessary? I live in the northwest area and I just had sprinklers put 

in and I get 90 lbs at my house. 

Response: It is a matter of the volume carried to the houses. The pressure at your house 

doesn’t necessarily reflect what the pipe size is.  

 

Comment: Fire department needs to be taken into account too for size of watermain. 

Response: One other thing to note with watermain is the cost savings to put it in while the 

road is being constructed. The last thing that we would want to do it build a road and then in 

5 or 6 years need to rip up the shoulder to put in new watermain. 

 

Comment: Do you have a schedule of decisions. When are they going to be as far as which 

project will be implemented? Would the $4 million project go ahead or the $8 million project 

and when will those decisions be made? 

Response: Those decisions will need to be made within a month and a half from today. That 

is why we are requesting feedback tonight and within the two week period. After those 



Page 7 of 9 

decisions are made, that will sent the chains in motion for getting the cost estimate, setting 

up those districts. At this time those decisions are not made. 

Comment: Is it the city commissions that makes those decisions? 

Response: It would be the city commission with the recommendation from us on which 

project to move forward with. 

 

Comment: Ryan Kiser (34th Ave) One option discussed was to take $4 million as far as we 

could go? Do you know how far we can go with that? 

Response: Preliminarily we are looking at stopping between 37th Avenue and 40th Avenue if 

just a $4 million project. 

 

Comment: Where does city limits end at as far as going west and north? 

Response: Roughriders is in city limits and out about a mile west of town. As far as north, I 

am not sure. Probably where the houses end and not much further. I would need to follow up 

and look at the City’s map to know that for sure.  

 

Comment: Do you know will there be a lot of development north of 47th, between 47th and 

Crown Point? Is that land going to be developed? Is there going to be a lot more building? 

Response: Yes we anticipate more growth that way. We don’t know exactly when or what it 

will be. The character of the area is residential, so it would be anticipated to be residential.  

 

Comment: What does the city say about rounding out the city? Urban sprawl is kind of a 

common theme. Pushing to the west and the south that has been talking about being 

developed. I know there is terrain issues. 

Response: Always good to grow a city centric so that you fill in those gaps of areas. We’ve 

got a pretty challenging terrain in the Mandan so that has to factor in as well. Ultimately the 

developer who owns the property when they are ready to develop or not.  

 

Comment: Bryan Zander (Crown Point Road) – Discussed sewer and water in presentation and 

questions. Are there any other impacts to utilities that have been identified? Would the utility 

easement have impacts? 

Response: Lighting will be added as part of this project. Impacts would be to temporary tying 

slopes into adjacent land. No expected impacts to existing utility easements.  

 

Comment: Ryan Kiser (34th Ave) Discussed truck traffic briefly. Do you know that traffic won’t 

increase on this road? Are you planning for truck traffic? We don’t know what is going to be 

developed in the north. If it were to become industrial, are we ready for that? They are 

planning for more industrial development by 34th Avenue. 

Response: Truck traffic would be pushed down to the southeast during construction.  



Page 8 of 9 

Trucks would want to go where there is something it needs to get to. If it’s easier to go west 

then it will continue to go west. What the zoning will be in the future as far as future truck 

traffic. The MPOs model doesn’t get specific as far as how many are cars and trucks. Try to 

find reasonable number that is expected and then plan for the best from there.  

 

Comment: How far is the water main going from the 6 in. to 12 in. watermain? 

Response: The east end would be right at Highland essentially. The initial plan is to go the 

whole length of the project. If the project limits change then the watermain would stop 

where the western project limit is.  

Comment: Who gets the bill when something happens and they need to rip the lines?  

Response: The installation cost would be the estimate from the contractor as far as who 

received the low bid. Public works takes care of the watermain after it is installed and the 

cost doesn’t get passed to homeowners for routine watermain issues.  

 

Comment: How long have you been looking into this project? 

Response: The concept came to light a few years ago. KLJ was hired this past spring as the 

project engineer, so the survey and preliminary engineering has been taking place since 

March or April.  

Comment: Everyone knew the school was going to be out here.  

Response: The school is a driving force behind some of the traffic. I would imagine that was a 

big consideration when this project was first conceived.  

 

Comment: Going from the 6 to the 12 inch is there going to be more water pressure for 

people because they don’t have a lot of water pressure as far as where you are going to start 

to the end? 

Response: It’s more an issue with capacity in the service area for that particular watermain. 

There has been a previous study that a 12 in watermain would service the whole northeast 

area. It’s more of an issue with capacity with how many homes and businesses can you service 

with that sized watermain.  

 

Comment: Ryan Kiser (34th Ave) Traffic will basically quadruple or more in the next few 

years. Four lanes and three lanes are similar to the capacity. Has there been a project for 

another exit off the interstate so that there isn’t so much traffic on a three lane road. 

Response: There has been some very preliminary studies of interchanges. That would be a 

long ways off and we don’t know where that would be.  

 

Comment: Years ago when Roughrider was being built the DOT had developed preliminary 

drawings indicating an interstate onramp at 56th Avenue near Roughrider and a road going to 



Page 9 of 9 

Old Highway 10 and then Main Avenue. There is a drawing for an interchange at 56th Avenue. 

It probably won’t happen for a few years, but it is there.  

Response: An interchange is quite a few years away. In long term planning we have identified 

a few logical locations such as 56th by Roughriders and then a possible grade separated 

crossing by Porsborg dam. Very far out and doesn’t impact this project.  

 



~ KL) 
~ ((v 
MAN CAN 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

Old Red Trail 
Thursday, August 20, 2015 - Red Trail Elementary School - 5:00 - 7:00 pm 

Pl ease use the space below to provide comments regard ing the Old Red Trai l Public Input Meeting. 

Name: .£~J~ 
PLEASE () 

PRINT Address: '-f aotf ~1Wf!mu£ ;t). uJ 

~ 

I 

Please leave comments wi th meeting conductors or mail comments by September 4, 2015 to: 
Jim Jackson, PE 
KLJ 
4585 Coleman Street 
Bismarck, ND 58502-0431 
Email: jim .jackson@klj eng.com 
Note "Old Red Trail" in the e-mail subject heading 

-THIS SPACE 
OFFICE USE 

ONLY-



From: Jim Jackson
To: Ashley Ross
Subject: FW: "Public Input Meeting" Old Red Trail
Date: Tuesday, September 08, 2015 9:33:07 AM

Could you add these next couple emails to the public input records?
 

From: Kenneth & Twila Gieser [mailto:oldgzr@bis.midco.net] 
Sent: Saturday, September 05, 2015 10:34 AM
To: Jim Jackson <jim.jackson@kljeng.com>
Cc: jfroseth@cityofmandan.com; avanbeek@cityofmandan.com; shauna.laber@cityofmandan.com
Subject: "Public Input Meeting" Old Red Trail
 
Re: Old Red Trail Reconstruction, Mandan, N.D.
 
I realize these comments are after the desired date. The meeting on 08/20/15 provided information,
 raised more questions, and provided few answers, so I suspect (and hope) there will be future
 meetings to address these and other issues.
 

1.       Funding  -- Budgeted amount, approx. $4 million, estimated cost $8 million. Bismarck
 Tribune article, 09/02/15, The city will spend $6 million, 80% ($4.8 million) federal funds
 and the remainder ($1.2 million) local funds. What happened?  Mis-information at the
 08/20/15 meeting?  Inaccurate reporting?   Still a gap between $6 million and $8 million. 
 Need clarification!!
 

2.       Funding   -- New Fire Hall – Recent Bismarck Tribune article reported the need and plan for a
 new Fire Hall in Northwest Mandan.  Undoubtedly paid for by “user fees” taxes.   How much
 can we afford?
 

3.       Funding   --  Street Improvement District (SID), Developer’s West – During the

 reconstruction of Old Red Trail 37th Street NW will be the main route for diverted traffic.

 The street is in good repair now. After the reconstruction 37th NW and Developer’s West
 will probably require repair. Who will pay? “User’s” fees?” The “users” who cause the wear
 and tear are through traffic, NOT local property owners who will be included in the SID for
 special assessments!!  How much can we afford?

 
4.       Funding   --  Red Trail & Sunset Drive  -- This intersection is a mess. Numerous accidents

 have occurred and as development continues, traffic increases, accidents will increase.
 Hopefully, no one including school children will be seriously injured. Improvements have
 been mentioned and I believe were mentioned on 08/20/15. Who will pay?  “User fees?” 
 How much can we afford?
 

5.       Adequate Access  --  Current paved access from the Developer’s West and the area
 identified by the MPO is limited to Old Red Trail to the East. West bound access is limited to
 gravel road. East bound traffic must pass by or through the Industrial Park. We now have an

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=JIM JACKSONC10
mailto:Ashley.Ross@kljeng.com


 Elementary School and a number of residents in the area, more anticipated. In the event of
 any industrial accident or incident of any kind closing Old Red Trail to the East, evacuation to
 the West is by limited maintenance gravel roads. I am NOT implying ANY incompetence of
 businesses in the Industrial Park, but these things happen. What consideration has been
 made for emergency outlet from this area?
 

6.       Developer’s Benefit – The project calls for a 12 inch water main to serve the anticipated
 growth area north of Old Red Trail. This will only make the sale of those properties more
 attractive and serve to benefit the Developer. The Developer is the “user”, the costs need to
 be assessed to the Developer!!!
 

7.       Developer’s Benefit – The slough north of Old Red Trail between 30th and 34th Avenues has
 been filled through the summer. During the early summer rains, water was channeled to the
 culverts at Old Red Trail which served to block the flow. How much of the project will be
 spent on elevating and reinforcing the road bed, installing a large culvert to handle really
 heavy rain or spring run-off that is channeled from a large area to a small area? All at the
 Developer’s benefit!!  “User” fees.  If the road and culvert are not adequate or the water
 flow too heavy, and the road becomes impassable or a hazard, what is the access?  Refer to
 #5.  Whether you build on a sand bar or in a slough, when you are looking for trouble, you
 will find it!!
 

8.       Disclosure – It is known Kadrmas, Lee & Jackson is the engineering partner for the
 Developer of the area north of Old Red Trail and for which the MPO anticipates growth and
 recommends the size and scope of this project, i.e. water main, Refer to #6. At the very
 least, this presents an appearance of conflict of interest.
What is KLJ’s participation in the MPO?
In light of the recent Mandan Sports Complex fiasco involving a KLJ partner, I suggest FULL
 disclosure by ANY and ALL parties involved, public and private.
 
 
Ken Gieser

3937 37th Street NW
Mandan, ND
701-202-3313
oldgzr@bis.midco.net
 

 
 

 

mailto:oldgzr@bis.midco.net


From: Jim Jackson
To: Ashley Ross
Subject: FW: Old Red Trail Comments
Date: Tuesday, September 08, 2015 9:33:28 AM

 
 

From: Jim & Cindy Weigel [mailto:fishweigel@bis.midco.net] 
Sent: Monday, September 07, 2015 10:32 AM
To: Jim Jackson <jim.jackson@kljeng.com>
Subject: RE: Old Red Trail Comments
 
Bottom line is the city only asked for $4 million so that is the only project they can build.  They
 cannot build an $8 million project on a budget of $4 million and the residents can’t afford an extra
 $4 million in assessments. 
 
Old Red Trail is a state highway so how much is the state DOT paying?
 

From: Jim & Cindy Weigel [mailto:fishweigel@bis.midco.net] 
Sent: Friday, September 04, 2015 11:46 PM
To: 'jim.jackson@kljeng.com' <jim.jackson@kljeng.com>
Subject: Old Red Trail Comments
 
 

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=JIM JACKSONC10
mailto:Ashley.Ross@kljeng.com
mailto:fishweigel@bis.midco.net
mailto:jim.jackson@kljeng.com


~ KL) s:.e <<v 
MANllAN 
nW H ERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

Id Red Trail 
Thursday, August 2 0, 2015 - Red Trai l Elementary School - 5:00 - TOO pm 

Please use the space below to provide comments rega rding the Old Red Tra il Pub lic Input Meeting. 

PLEASE Nam e: 

PRINT Address: 

I/ 

Q., // ff-- t--f »<. ?; 

1Jt- ... LL1~ib:_tT)L_6-'i/e_. 7Z P Le.+!" le..AJ.L 1.S 
LIL~e__ fiv 37 t-L f"'G~,, f~de..s:J-d:c & 

. r -

,+l.. d: 

trfLv£-)~4; "" p-dr ~ ~ ~~ M s-~ rrA w::4 
P~mments with meeting conductors or mail comments by September 4, 2015 to: 

Jim Jackson, PE 
KLJ 
4585 Coleman Street 
Bismarck, ND 58502-0431 
Email: jim.jackson@kljeng.com 
Note "Old Red Tra il" in the e-mail subject heading 

-THIS SPACE 
OFFICE USE 

ONLY-



L&J KL) 
~ ((v 
MAN CAN 
" WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

Old Red Trail 
Addit ional space for comments if needed. 

/\..& f)~ 

-THIS SPACE t )/"; ,,,,:N ft ,Oj....~e.r-h.~J f'f '-/ i--: 1/. J )l)~ti <'..<.) 'S' 
OFFICE USE ~ f v - - "' ' 

ONLY-

~sn e. /),,, jf:, .., I!; I; ~ C,lJj rs I :, .v /., J._,_ '> '-ti../ e,,A 
. 2 p,J/,/&Uf -

' 
., 

( v..- ,,J:t:;' ~ - .5 ...e ..... e. :::-) J._ 5/p_,- -
,. 

' A Al #II/_ ti h ;.VI>~ c u'"t /vow lb )l'}f. s.i M>. IJ j, L t'Jf 
v fJ I 

t.Jlt" A~,~,~ wLt ·v~ 
, 

o/JJ1 lht? i :11 h.L 1 :0 n L ""·A .;/t;,} 
/ 

'"/ ""':ti~ 
I 

~r ' ''/ ,, LI i. c ~,.7* ? B ... tJ ~ fY'L--. 11._ 1.,._,,j I J~ 
I " 



 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1219 

 

An Ordinance to Adopt Amendments to Chapter 18 Offenses and 

Miscellaneous Provisions and Chapter 24 Traffic and Vehicles of 

the New Mandan Code of Ordinances 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1207 was recently adopted to revise the city code, and 

 

WHEREAS, The revised city code contains cross-references to NDCC sections; and 

 

WHEREAS, City staff have identified several additional references to NDCC sections that 

need to be added to the city code. 

  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City 

of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Amendments to adopted code.  The new Mandan Code of Ordinances recently 

adopted by Ordinance No. 1207 is hereby amended. 

 

a. A new Section 24-12-9 is added and existing section 24-12-9 is renumbered 24-12-10. 

 

Sec. 24-12-9.  Use of a wireless communications device prohibited. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-08-23. 

 

39-08-23. Use of a wireless communications device prohibited. 

1. The operator of a motor vehicle that is part of traffic may not use a wireless 

communications device to compose, read, or send an electronic message. 

2. Under this section: 

a. "Electronic message" means a self-contained piece of digital communication that 

is designed or intended to be transmitted between physical devices. The term 

includes e-mail, a text message, an instant message, a command or request to 

access a worldwide web page, or other data that uses a commonly recognized 

electronic communications protocol. The term does not include: 

(1) Reading, selecting, or entering a telephone number, an extension number, or 

voice mail retrieval codes and commands into an electronic device for the 

purpose of initiating or receiving a telephone or cellular phone call or using 

voice commands to initiate or receive a telephone or cellular phone call; 

(2) Inputting, selecting, or reading information on a global positioning system 

device or other navigation system device; 

(3) Using a device capable of performing multiple functions, such as fleet 

management systems, dispatching devices, smartphones, citizen band radios, 

music players, or similar devices, for a purpose that is not otherwise 

prohibited; 

Resolutions and Ordinances No. 1 



(4) Voice or other data transmitted as a result of making a telephone or cellular 

phone call; or 

(5) Data transmitted automatically by a wireless communication device without 

direct initiation by an individual. 

b. "Traffic" means operation of a motor vehicle while in motion or for the purposes 

of travel on any street or highway and includes a temporary stop or halt of motion, 

such as at an official traffic-control signal or sign. The term does not include a 

motor vehicle that is lawfully parked. 

3. This section does not apply if a wireless communications device is used for obtaining 

emergency assistance to report a traffic accident, medical emergency, or serious 

traffic hazard or to prevent a crime about to be committed, in the reasonable belief 

that an individual's life or safety is in immediate danger, or in an authorized 

emergency vehicle while in the performance of official duties. 

 

b. Correct Section 24-14-4 to read:  Sec. 24-14-4.  Obedience to any required traffic - 

control devices. 

 

c. Section 24-14-33 is relocated as Section 24-17-2 and section numbers 24-14-34 through 

24-14-44 renumbered 24-14-33 through 24-14-43. 

 

d. New section 24-14-44 is added. 

 

Sec. 24-14-44.  Weight limitations for vehicles on highways other than the interstate system. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-12-05.3. 

 

39-12-05.3. Weight limitations for vehicles on highways other than the interstate system. 

1. A person may not operate on a highway that is not part of the interstate system any 

vehicle with a single axle that carries a gross weight in excess of twenty thousand 

pounds [9071.85 kilograms] or a wheel load over ten thousand pounds [4535.92 

kilograms]. A wheel may not carry a gross weight over five hundred fifty pounds 

[249.48 kilograms] for each inch [2.54 centimeters] of tire width. Axles spaced forty 

inches [101.60 centimeters] apart or less are considered as one axle. On axles spaced 

over forty inches [101.60 centimeters] and under eight feet [2.44 meters] apart, the 

axle load may not exceed nineteen thousand pounds [8618.26 kilograms] per axle, 

with a maximum of thirty-four thousand pounds [15422.14 kilograms] gross weight 

on a tandem axle and a maximum of forty-eight thousand pounds [21772.32 

kilograms] gross weight on any grouping of three or more axles. The wheel load, in 

any instance, may not exceed one-half the allowable axle load. Spacing between axles 

is measured from axle center to axle center. 

2. Subject to the limitations imposed by subsection 1 on tires, wheel, and axle loads, a 

person may not operate on a highway that is not part of the interstate system any 

vehicle the gross weight of which exceeds that determined by the formula of: 

W = 500 (LN + 12N + 36) 

N-1 



      where W equals the maximum gross weight in pounds on any vehicle or combination 

of vehicles; L equals distance in feet between the two extreme axles of any vehicle or 

combination of vehicles; and N equals the number of axles of any vehicle or 

combination of vehicles under consideration. The gross weight on state highways 

may not exceed one hundred five thousand five hundred pounds [47854.00 

kilograms] unless otherwise posted and on all other highways the gross weight may 

not exceed eighty thousand pounds [36287.39 kilograms] unless designated by local 

authorities for highways under their jurisdiction for gross weights not to exceed one 

hundred five thousand five hundred pounds [47854.00 kilograms]. Local authorities 

are encouraged to assess all roads under their jurisdiction and designate the roads for 

the appropriate weight limits allowed under this subsection. 

3. The gross weight limitations in subsections 1 and 2 do not apply to equipment the 

director and the state highway patrol approve for exemption. The exemption may not 

exceed one hundred five thousand five hundred pounds [47854.00 kilograms]. For 

every vehicle approved for exemption the highway patrol shall issue a 

nontransferable permit valid for one year. The highway patrol may charge an 

administrative fee for the permit. 

4. The director, and local authorities, as to the highways under their respective 

jurisdictions, may issue permits authorizing a specific motor vehicle to exceed the 

weight limitations stated in subsections 1 and 2 by ten percent. The permits may not 

provide for a gross weight in excess of one hundred five thousand five hundred 

pounds [47854.00 kilograms]. The permits must provide only for the movement of 

agricultural products from the field of harvest to the point of initial storage site, and 

for the collection and transport of solid wastes, during the period from July fifteenth 

to December first, and for the general movement of products during the period from 

December first to March seventh. The appropriate jurisdictional authority shall 

establish an appropriate fee for the permits and direct how they shall be issued. The 

highway patrol shall issue the permits authorized by the director. 

5. The director, and local authorities, as to highways under their respective jurisdictions, 

may issue permits authorizing all vehicles carrying potatoes or sugar beets to exceed 

weight limitations stated in subsections 1 and 2 by ten percent during the period from 

July fifteenth to December first. The permits may not provide for a gross weight in 

excess of one hundred five thousand five hundred pounds [47854.00 kilograms]. The 

appropriate jurisdictional authority shall establish an appropriate fee for the permits 

and direct how they shall be issued. The highway patrol shall issue the permits 

authorized by the director. 

6. The gross weight limitations in subsections 1 and 2 do not apply to movement of a 

self-propelled fertilizer spreader if the weight of a single axle does not exceed twenty-

two thousand pounds [9973.03 kilograms] and does not exceed five hundred fifty 

pounds [249.48 kilograms] for each inch [2.54 centimeters] of tire width. The gross 

weight limitations in subsections 1 and 2 do not apply to movement of a self-

propelled agricultural chemical applicator if the weight of a single axle does not 

exceed twenty-two thousand pounds [9973.03 kilograms] and does not exceed five 

hundred fifty pounds [249.48 kilograms] for each inch [2.54 centimeters] of tire 

width. The highway patrol shall issue a seasonal permit for the commercial 

movement of vehicles exempted by this subsection. The seasonal permit issued under 



this subsection or under subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 39-12-04 entitles an 

individual with the permit to operate a vehicle as allowed by either of these 

provisions. A seasonal permit issued under this subsection is subject to the 

requirements of subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 39-12-04. 

7. The weight limitations in subsections 1 and 2 do not apply to equipment the director 

and the state highway patrol approve for exemption but the weight limitations in 

section 39-12-05 do apply to that equipment. For every vehicle approved for 

exemption, the highway patrol shall issue a nontransferable bridge length permit valid 

for a single trip or a calendar year. 

8. The axle weight limitations in subsection 1 do not apply to movements of implements 

of husbandry or equipment with pneumatic tires used for construction which is used 

by an agricultural producer while using the equipment for the producer's agricultural, 

horticultural, or livestock operations if the maximum wheel load does not exceed five 

hundred fifty pounds [249.48 kilograms] for each inch [2.54 centimeters] of tire width 

and if the gross weight limitation in this section is not exceeded. 

 

e. New sections 24-15-5 through 24-15-9 are added and existing sections 24-15-5 and 24-

15-6 renumbered 24-15-10 and 24-15-11. 

 

Sec. 24-15-5.  Visibility distance and mounted height of lamps. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-02. 

 

39-21-02. Visibility distance and mounted height of lamps. 

1. Whenever requirement is hereinafter declared as to distance from which certain lamps 

and devices must render objects visible or within which such lamps or devices must 

be visible, said provisions apply during the times stated in section 39-21-01 in respect 

to a vehicle without load when upon a straight, level, unlighted highway under 

normal atmospheric conditions unless a different time or condition is expressly stated. 

2. Whenever requirement is hereinafter declared as to the mounted height of lamps or 

devices it means from the center of such lamp or device to the level ground upon 

which the vehicle stands when such vehicle is without a load. 

 

Sec. 24-15-6.  Taillamps. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-04. 

 

39-21-04. Taillamps. 

1. Every motor vehicle, trailer, semitrailer and pole trailer, and any other vehicle which 

is being drawn at the end of a train of vehicles, must be equipped with at least one 

taillamp mounted on the rear, which, when lighted as hereinbefore required, must 

emit a red light plainly visible from a distance of one thousand feet [304.8 meters] to 

the rear, provided that in the case of a train of vehicles only the taillamp on the 

rearmost vehicle need actually be seen from the distance specified. Every such above-



mentioned vehicle, other than a truck tractor, registered in this state and manufactured 

or assembled after January 1, 1964, must be equipped with at least two taillamps 

mounted on the rear, on the same level and as widely spaced laterally as practicable, 

which, when lighted as herein required, comply with the provisions of this section. 

2. Every taillamp upon every vehicle must be located at a height of not more than 

seventy-two inches [182.88 centimeters] nor less than fifteen inches [38.1 

centimeters]. 

3. Either a taillamp or a separate lamp must be so constructed and placed as to 

illuminate with a white light the rear registration plate and render it clearly legible 

from a distance of fifty feet [15.24 meters] to the rear. Any taillamp or taillamps, 

together with any separate lamp for illuminating the rear registration plate, must be so 

wired as to be lighted whenever the headlamps or auxiliary driving lamps are lighted. 

 

Sec. 24-15-7.  Use of multiple-beam road-lighting equipment. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-21. 

 

39-21-21. Use of multiple-beam road-lighting equipment. 

Whenever a motor vehicle is being operated on a roadway or shoulder adjacent thereto 

during the times specified in section 39-21-01, the driver shall use a distribution of light, or 

composite beam, directed high enough and of sufficient intensity to reveal persons and 

vehicles at a safe distance in advance of the vehicle, subject to the following requirements 

and limitations: 

1. Whenever a driver of a vehicle approaches an oncoming vehicle within five hundred 

feet [152.4 meters], such driver shall use a distribution of light, or composite beam, so 

aimed that the glaring rays are not projected into the eyes of the oncoming driver. The 

lowermost distribution of light, or composite beam, specified in subsection 2 of 

section 39-21-20 must be deemed to avoid glare at all times, regardless of road 

contour and loading. 

2. Whenever the driver of a vehicle follows another vehicle within three hundred feet 

[91.44 meters] to the rear, the driver shall use a distribution of light permissible under 

this chapter other than the uppermost distribution of light specified in subsection 1 of 

section 39-21-20. 

 

Sec. 24-15-8.  Special restrictions on lamps. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-26. 

 

39-21-26. Special restrictions on lamps. 

1. Any lighted lamp or illuminating device upon a motor vehicle, other than headlamps, 

spot lamps, auxiliary lamps, flashing turn signals, emergency vehicle warning lamps 

and schoolbus warning lamps, which projects a beam of light of an intensity greater 

than three hundred candlepower must be so directed that no part of the high-intensity 



portion of the beam will strike the level of the roadway on which the vehicle stands at 

a distance of more than seventy-five feet [22.86 meters] from the vehicle. 

2. No person may drive or move any vehicle or equipment upon any highway with any 

lamp or device thereon displaying a red or green light visible from directly in front of 

the center thereof. This section does not apply to any vehicle upon which a red light 

visible from the front is expressly authorized or required by this chapter. 

3. Flashing lights are prohibited except on an authorized emergency vehicle, schoolbus, 

snow-removal equipment or on any vehicle as a means of indicating a right or left 

turn, or the presence of a vehicular traffic hazard requiring unusual care in 

approaching, overtaking, or passing. 

 

Sec. 24-15-9.  Brake equipment required. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-32. 

 

39-21-32. Brake equipment required. 

1. Every motor vehicle, other than a motorcycle or motor-driven cycle, when operated 

upon a highway must be equipped with brakes adequate to control the movement of 

and to stop and hold such vehicle, including two separate means of applying the 

brakes, each of which means must be effective to apply the brakes to at least two 

wheels. If these two separate means of applying the brakes are connected in any way, 

they must be so constructed that failure of any one part of the operating mechanism 

does not leave the motor vehicle without brakes on at least two wheels. 

2. Every farm tractor, motorcycle, and motor-driven cycle, when operated upon a 

highway, must be equipped with at least one brake, which may be operated by hand 

or foot. 

3. Every trailer or semitrailer when operated upon a highway at a speed in excess of 

twenty-five miles [40.23 kilometers] per hour must be equipped with safety chains or 

brakes adequate to control the movement of and to stop and to hold such vehicle and 

so designed as to be applied by the driver of the towing motor vehicle from its cab, 

and said brakes must be so designed and connected that in case of an accidental 

breakaway of the towed vehicle the brakes are automatically applied. 

4. One of the means of brake operation must be parking brakes adequate to hold the 

vehicle on any grade on which it is operated, under all conditions of loading, on a 

surface free from snow, ice, or loose material. The parking brakes must be capable of 

being applied in conformance with the foregoing requirements by the driver's 

muscular effort or by spring action or by equivalent means. Their operation may be 

assisted by the service brakes or other source of power provided that failure of the 

service brake actuation system or other power-assisting mechanism will not prevent 

the parking brakes from being applied in conformance with the foregoing 

requirements. The parking brakes must be so designed that when once applied they 

remain applied with the required effectiveness despite exhaustion of any source of 

energy or leakage of any kind. The same brakedrums, brakeshoes and lining 

assemblies, brakeshoe anchors, and mechanical brakeshoe actuation mechanism 



normally associated with the wheel brake assemblies may be used for both the service 

brakes and the parking brakes. 

 

f. New section 24-15-12 is added and existing section 24-15-7 renumbered 24-15-13. 

 

Sec. 24-15-12.  Mirror. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-38. 

 

39-21-38. Mirror. 

On and after January 1, 1964, every motor vehicle, operated singly or when towing any 

other vehicle, must be equipped with a mirror so located as to reflect to the driver a view of 

the highway for a distance of at least two hundred feet [60.96 meters] to the rear of such 

motor vehicle. 

 

g. New section 24-15-14 is added and existing sections 24-15-8 and 24-15-9 renumbered 

24-15-15 and 24-15-16. 

 

Sec. 24-15-14.  Restrictions as to tire equipment. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-40. 

 

39-21-40. Restrictions as to tire equipment. 

1. Every solid rubber tire on a vehicle must have rubber on its entire traction surface at 

least one inch [2.54 centimeters] thick above the edge of the flange of the entire 

periphery. 

2. No person may operate or move on any highway any motor vehicle, trailer, or 

semitrailer having any metal tire in contact with the roadway. 

3. No tire on a vehicle moved on a highway may have on its periphery any block, stud, 

flange, cleat, or spike or any other protuberance of any material other than rubber 

which projects beyond the tread of the traction surface of the tire, except that it is 

permissible to use farm machinery with tires having protuberances which will not 

injure the highway, and except also that it is permissible to use tire chains of 

reasonable proportions. It is also permissible to use, from October fifteenth to April 

fifteenth, pneumatic tires which have metal studs which do not project more than one-

sixteenth of an inch [1.59 millimeters] beyond the tread of the traction surface of the 

tire, except that it is permissible to use such tires on schoolbuses at any time during 

the year. 

 

h. New sections 24-15-17, 24-15-18 and 24-15-19 are added. 

 

Sec. 24-15-17.  Modification of motor vehicle. 

 



Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-45.1. 

 

39-21-45.1. Modification of motor vehicle. 

1. An individual who operates a registered motor vehicle on a highway may not modify 

that vehicle unless the modification meets the following requirements: 

a. Any modifying equipment must meet any other requirement applicable to a 

vehicle under chapter 39-21. 

b. If tires placed on a motor vehicle have a diameter greater than that of the tires on 

the motor vehicle as manufactured, those tires must be branded with a United 

States department of transportation tire identification number. 

c. The maximum body height permitted for a motor vehicle is forty-two inches 

[106.68 centimeters]. Measurement of body height is made from a level ground 

surface to the floor of the cargo area. 

2. An individual may not operate a registered motor vehicle on a highway unless the 

motor vehicle is equipped with front and rear bumpers. The height of the bumper 

must not exceed twenty-seven inches [68.58 centimeters] and this measurement is 

made from a level ground surface to the highest point on the bottom of the bumper. A 

horizontal drop bumper may be used to comply with this subsection and must be at 

least three inches [7.62 centimeters] in vertical width; extend the entire horizontal 

body width; and be horizontal, load bearing, and attached to the vehicle frame to 

effectively transfer impact when engaged. 

3. Vehicles owned by law enforcement agencies, the military, firefighting agencies, and 

ambulances may be modified without regard to this section. 

4. The director may adopt rules to implement this section. 

 

Sec. 24-15-18.  Scope and effect of equipment requirements - Penalty. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-46. 

 

39-21-46. Scope and effect of equipment requirements - Penalty. 

1. It is unlawful for any person to drive or move, or for the owner to cause or knowingly 

permit to be driven or moved, on any highway any vehicle or combination of vehicles 

which the actor knows does not contain those parts or is not at all times equipped with 

lamps and other equipment in proper condition and adjustment as required in this 

chapter, or which the actor knows is equipped in any manner in violation of this 

chapter, or for any person to do any act forbidden or fail to perform any act required 

under this chapter for which a fee or penalty for its violation is not otherwise 

provided. 

2. A person who drives or moves, or any owner who causes or knowingly permits to be 

driven or moved upon a highway, any vehicle or combination of vehicles which that 

person knows is in such unsafe condition as to endanger a person is guilty of an 

infraction. 

3. The superintendent of the state highway patrol shall, under chapter 28-32, adopt 

necessary rules concerning the safe operation of motor vehicles and when and how 



motor carrier audits or inspections will be conducted. The rules must duplicate or be 

consistent with current motor carrier safety regulations of the United States 

department of transportation. The superintendent of the state highway patrol may 

adopt the motor carrier safety regulations by reference, and any adoption must be 

construed to incorporate amendments as may be made from time to time. A violation 

of rules adopted under this subsection is a noncriminal violation. A person who fails 

or refuses to comply with these rules must be assessed a fee in the amount set forth in 

section 39-06.1-06 for each violation. 

4. Nothing contained in this chapter may be construed to prohibit the use of additional 

parts and accessories on any vehicle not inconsistent with the provisions of this 

chapter. 

5. The provisions of this chapter with respect to equipment on vehicles do not apply to 

implements of husbandry, road machinery, road rollers, or farm tractors except as 

specifically made applicable. 

6. The provisions of this chapter with respect to equipment required on vehicles do not 

apply to motorcycles or motor-driven cycles, except as specifically made applicable. 

7. The provisions of this chapter and regulations of the department do not apply to 

vehicles moved solely by human power, except as specifically made applicable. 

 

Sec. 24-15-19.  Slow-moving vehicles required to display identification emblem - 

Penalty. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-21-50. 

 

39-21-50. Slow-moving vehicles required to display identification emblem - Penalty. 

All implements of husbandry, as defined in section 39-01-01, and machinery, including 

all road construction machinery, designed for operation at a speed of twenty-five miles 

[40.23 kilometers] an hour or less, must display either a triangular slow-moving vehicle 

emblem or a rotating or flashing amber light, as authorized for class B emergency vehicles, 

whenever traveling along the roadway on any county, state, federal highway, or city street in 

the state of North Dakota. The emblem or light must be mounted so as to be visible from a 

distance of not less than five hundred feet [152.4 meters] to the rear. The director shall adopt 

standards and specifications for the design and position of mounting the slow-moving vehicle 

emblem and light. The standards and specifications for slow-moving vehicle emblems 

referred to in this section must correlate with and, so far as possible, conform with those 

approved by the American society of agricultural engineers. No vehicle, other than those 

specified in this section, must display a slow-moving vehicle emblem, and its use on any type 

of stationary object is prohibited. Any person who fails or refuses to comply with the 

provisions of this section must be assessed a fee of twenty dollars for each offense. 

 

i. Sections 24-17-3 and 24-17-4 are added to read: 

 

Sec. 24-17-3.  Stopping, standing, or parking prohibited in specified places. 

 



Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-10-49. 

 

39-10-49. Stopping, standing, or parking prohibited in specified places. 

No person may stop, stand, or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict 

with other traffic or in compliance with law or the directions of a police officer or traffic-

control device, in any of the following places: 

1. On a sidewalk. 

2. In front of a public or private driveway. 

3. Within an intersection. 

4. Within ten feet [3.05 meters] of a fire hydrant. 

5. On a crosswalk. 

6. Within ten feet [3.05 meters] of a crosswalk at an intersection. 

7. Within fifteen feet [4.57 meters] upon the approach to any flashing beacon, stop sign, 

or traffic-control signal located at the side of a roadway. 

8. Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within fifteen feet [4.57 meters] of 

points on the curb immediately opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless the 

department or local authority indicates a different length by signs or markings. 

9. Within fifteen feet [4.57 meters] of the nearest rail of a railroad crossing. 

10. Within twenty feet [6.10 meters] of the driveway entrance to any fire station and on 

the side of a street opposite the entrance to any fire station within seventy-five feet 

[22.86 meters] of said entrance when properly signposted. 

11. Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when stopping, standing, 

or parking would obstruct traffic. 

12. On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street. 

13. Upon any bridge or other elevated structure upon a highway or within a highway 

tunnel. 

14. At any place where official signs prohibit stopping. 

No person shall move a vehicle not lawfully under the person's control into any such 

prohibited area or away from a curb such distance as is unlawful. 

 

Sec. 24-17-4.  Additional parking regulations. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-10-50. 

 

39-10-50. Additional parking regulations. 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, every vehicle stopped or parked upon a 

two-way roadway must be so stopped or parked with the right-hand wheels of such 

vehicle parallel to and within twelve inches [30.48 centimeters] of the right-hand curb 

or as close as practicable to the right edge of the right-hand shoulder. 

2. Except where otherwise provided by local ordinance, every vehicle stopped or parked 

upon a one-way roadway must be so stopped or parked parallel to the curb or edge of 

the roadway, in the direction of authorized traffic movement, with its right-hand 

wheels within twelve inches [30.48 centimeters] of the right-hand curb or as close as 

practicable to the right edge of the right-hand shoulder, or with its left-hand wheels 



within twelve inches [30.48 centimeters] of the left-hand curb or as close as 

practicable to the left edge of the left-hand shoulder. 

3. Local authorities may by ordinance permit angle parking on any roadway, except that 

angle parking is not permitted on any federal-aid or state highway without first 

obtaining the written authorization of the director. 

4. The department with respect to highways under its jurisdiction may place official 

traffic-control devices prohibiting or restricting the stopping, standing, or parking of 

vehicles on any highway where in its opinion such stopping, standing, or parking is 

dangerous to those using the highway or where the stopping, standing, or parking of 

vehicles would unduly interfere with the free movement of traffic thereon. No person 

may stop, stand, or park any vehicle in violation of the restrictions indicated by such 

devices. 

5. The department, with respect to streets, roadways, and parking areas of any state 

charitable or penal institution and on the state capitol grounds, may authorize the 

purchase and placement by the supervisory agency of official traffic-control devices 

prohibiting or restricting the stopping, standing, or parking of vehicles. The 

placement of signs pursuant to this section must be done when, in the department's 

opinion, the stopping, standing, or parking is dangerous or would unduly interfere 

with the free movement of traffic, especially the free flow of traffic required for 

proper fire protection.  No person may stop, stand, or park any vehicle in violation of 

the restriction indicated by any official traffic-control device. Any registered owner 

must be presumed to have been the operator of a vehicle that is parked in violation of 

any official traffic-control device prohibiting or restricting the stopping, standing, or 

parking of vehicles on any highway, state charitable or penal institution property, or 

on the state capitol grounds. This presumption may be rebutted by a showing of clear 

and convincing evidence to the contrary. However, no traffic citation may be issued 

for a violation of this subsection occurring on the state capitol grounds during a 

legislative session, except that a written warning must be placed on any vehicle for 

such a violation. 

 

j. New section 24-19-13 is added to read. 

 

Sec. 24-19-13.  Operation by persons under age sixteen. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

39-19-13. 

 

39-29-10. Operation by persons under age sixteen. 

Except as otherwise provided in this section, an individual under sixteen years of age 

who is not in possession of a valid operator's license or permit to operate an off-highway 

vehicle may not, except upon the lands of the individual's parent or guardian or as a 

participant in an organized sporting event that involves the use of off-highway vehicles, 

operate an off-highway vehicle. An individual at least twelve years of age may operate an 

off-highway vehicle if the individual has completed an off-highway vehicle safety training 

course prescribed by the director of the parks and recreation department and has received the 

appropriate off-highway vehicle safety certificate issued by the director of the department of 



transportation. The failure of an operator to exhibit an off-highway vehicle safety certificate 

on demand to any official authorized to enforce this chapter is presumptive evidence that that 

person does not hold a certificate. Fees collected from each individual receiving certification 

must be deposited in the off-highway vehicle trail tax fund for off-highway vehicle safety 

education and training programs. 

 

k. New section 18-4-18 is added to read. 

 

Sec. 18-4-18.  False information or report to law enforcement officers or security 

officials. 

 

Citations issued into municipal court under this section are for a violation of N.D.C.C. § 

12.1-11-03. 

 

12.1-11-03. False information or report to law enforcement officers or security officials. 

A person is guilty of a class A misdemeanor if that person: 

1. Gives false information or a false report to a law enforcement officer which that person 

knows to be false, and the information or report may interfere with an investigation or 

may materially mislead a law enforcement officer; or 

2. Falsely reports to a law enforcement officer or other security official the occurrence of a 

crime of violence or other incident calling for an emergency response when that person 

knows that the incident did not occur. "Security official" means a public servant 

responsible for averting or dealing with emergencies involving public safety. 

 

 

 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect when adopted. 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:             9/15/2015  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:       10/6/2015  

 



Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  A discrepancy in numbering of streets in this area has been 

discovered.  Rather than revise numbering of existing houses, it is recommended that the new 

street recently platted in Lakewood 8
th

 Addition be renamed.  This project is under development 

and no houses have yet been built.  This is the appropriate time to adjust the street name.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 1221. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1221. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1221 

 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE NAMES OF CERTAIN STREETS OR 

PARTS THEREOF SITUATED WITHIN THE CITY OF MANDAN, 

MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Name of Street.  The name of the following street is hereby changed as set forth 

below, namely; 

 

1. Shoal Loop SE as platted in Lakewood 8
th

 Addition in Section 1, Township 138 North, 

Range 81 West of the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota is hereby changed 

to 24
th

 Street SE. 

 

Section 2.  Notice.  The proper officials of the city are hereby directed to take such action as 

they may deem necessary or desirable to notify city residents of this change. 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance 1221 renaming street 

in Lakewood 8
th

 Addition 

Res. & Ord. No. 2  

  



 

       _________________________________ 

       President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:      October 6, 2015  

Second Consideration:         

Recording Date:          

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

There is a need to establish requirements for dealing with graffiti. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

The Community Beautification Committee (CBC) began discussing the issue of graffiti 

in January, 2015.  Graffiti has a negative impact on not only the structure to which it is 

applied but the community as a whole.  Formal procedures are needed to allow the city to 

deal with the issue. 

 

Wording examples were gathered from the International Property Maintenance Code as 

well as other communities including Billings, Montana; Duluth, Minnesota; Great Falls, 

Montana; Gwinnett County, Georgia and St. Paul, Minnesota. 

 

A draft ordinance was prepared by Attorney Brown and then reviewed and edited over 

several months by the committee. 

 

The proposed ordinance before you was recommended for approval at the September 10, 

2015 CBC meeting. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1204 establishing requirements 

for removal of graffiti. 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance No. 1204 

establishing requirements for removal of graffiti 

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 
Subject: Graffiti Ordinance 1204 

Page 2 of 4 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1204 

An Ordinance to Create and Enact Article 7 of Chapter 16 

of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to Graffiti 

 

Be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners: 

 

An Ordinance to create a new Article 7 to Chapter 16 of the Mandan Code of 

Ordinances relating to graffiti is hereby enacted as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 7. GRAFFITI 

 

Sec. 16-7-1. Abatement of graffiti by property owner or city. 

 

Property or owner responsibility. It is unlawful for any person who is the owner or 

responsible party of property to permit property that is defaced with graffiti to remain 

defaced for a period of ten days from the date of written notice of the defacement. Notice 

under this article is sufficient if served upon the owner or responsible person personally 

or mailed regular mail to the last known address of the owner or responsible person or the 

last address of the owner shown on the tax rolls of the city. The notice shall contain the 

following information: 

 

(1)  The street address and legal description of the property sufficient for 

identification of the property; 

(2)  A statement that the property is a potential graffiti nuisance property with a 

concise description of the conditions leading to the finding; and 

(3)  A statement that the graffiti must be abated within ten days after written notice 

and that if the graffiti is not abated within that time the city shall cause the graffiti 

to be abated and the cost thereof shall be assessed against the non-complying real 

property. In addition, an administrative cost equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of 

the cost of abatement and a twenty-five dollar ($25.00) penalty or $100, 

whichever is greater, shall be assessed against the non-complying real property. 

 

Sec. 16-7-2. Failure to comply. 

 

(a) Upon failure, neglect or refusal to abate the graffiti during the prescribed period: 

 

(1)  The city may, by its own work forces or by contract, cause the graffiti to be 

abated and the cost thereof shall be assessed against the non-complying real 

property plus an administrative cost equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the cost 

of abatement and a twenty-five dollar ($25.00) penalty or $100, whichever is 

greater; and 

(2)  That the assessed amount together with costs and penalties shall constitute a lien 

on the non-complying real property and will be taxed as a special assessment 

against the real property. 

 

(b)  Appeal. The owner or agent may appeal to the City Commission within ten days 

of written notice any determination that they have failed to comply with the requirements 

of any order. 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 
Subject: Graffiti Ordinance 1204 

Page 3 of 4 

 

(c) Any person who willfully fails to comply with the provisions of this article is 

guilty of an offense. 

 

Sec. 16-7-3. Abatement and cost recovery proceedings. 

 

(a) Annually the city shall prepare a list of all lots, tracts and parcels of real property 

within the city from which the graffiti was abated by the city and for which such charges 

and penalties have not yet been paid.  The list shall include as a minimum the following: 

(1) Name as shown by the tax rolls, common address if known; 

(2) Tax code of the property; 

(3) Legal description of the lot, tract or parcel; 

(4) Cost of the graffiti abatement for that property; 

(5) Administrative costs; and 

(6) Penalty assessed. 

 

(b) The assessment list shall be incorporated into a special assessment resolution in 

proper form which resolution shall be presented to the City Commission for 

consideration. From and after passage of the resolution, the assessments stated therein, 

together with administrative costs and penalty shall constitute a special assessment, as 

provided in NDCC §40-05-01.1, and a lien on the real property shown on the assessment 

list. A copy of the resolution after passage shall be certified to the official collecting the 

city taxes and assessments. 

 

Sec. 16-7-4. Prevention provisions. 

 

Retro-fit existing graffiti-attracting surfaces; non-residential structures. The 

following provisions may be incorporated in a graffiti eradication order: 

 

(1) At owner’s expense. Any surface of a structure on a parcel of land used for non-

residential purposes that has been defaced with graffiti more than five times in 

twelve months shall be declared a public nuisance and may be required to be 

retro-fitted, at the cost of the property owner, with features or qualities as may be 

established by the city as necessary to reduce the attractiveness of the surface for 

graffiti, or as necessary to permit more convenient or efficient abatement of 

graffiti; and 

(2)  Appeal. The owner or agent may appeal within ten days of written notice any 

determination that they are required to retro-fit the property with features or 

qualities necessary to reduce the attractiveness of the surface for graffiti or to 

permit more convenient or efficient abatement of graffiti to the City Commission. 

 

 

By:___________________________ 

Arlyn Van Beek, President 

Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 
Subject: Graffiti Ordinance 1204 

Page 4 of 4 

 

First Consideration:      October 6, 2015 

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   _____________ 

Publication:       _____________ 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

The use of fireworks during celebrations is an established custom.  However, in a city 

environment the potential for harm to property is high.  Certain types of fireworks are 

especially problematic. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

Incendiary balloons, sky lanterns and celebration lanterns have become popular.  The 

problem with these is that they are carried uncontrolled by the wind and can set fire to 

anything they land on. 

 

Tesoro made a request to ban these. 

 

Tom Doering, Morton County Emergency Manager contacted five of the eight licensed 

fireworks vendors operating in the area and only received one outright objection. 

 

Mr. Doering will be submitting a similar request to the county at their October 8
th

 

meeting. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

The fire department has studied this issue and in consultation with Morton County is 

recommending that these items be prohibited for public safety reasons. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1220 prohibiting the use of 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2015 

PREPARATION DATE: October 2, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

PRESENTER: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance No. 1220 adding 

a prohibition against use of incendiary balloons,  

sky lanterns and celebration lanterns 

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 4 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2015 
Subject: Fireworks Ordinance 1220 

Page 2 of 2 

incendiary balloons, sky lanterns and celebration lanterns. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1220 

 
An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Chapter 10, Article 

2, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan 

Relating to Fireworks 

 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 10-2-10 Amendments to International Fire Code of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Mandan relating to incendiary balloons and sky lanterns is 

hereby amended and re-enacted to read as follows: 

 

     Section 5601.1.13.  Fireworks.  The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, 

handling and use of fireworks are prohibited within the city limits. 

 

 Exceptions: 

 

 c. The use of fireworks for display as permitted in section 5608 is an 

exception to the prohibition of use of fireworks in the city, provided that the requirements 

of sections 5601.2.3 and 5601.2.4 are met.  The possession, use, discharge, or explosion 

of fireworks, as defined by N.D.C.C. §23-15-01, not including bottle rockets, or a balloon 

that requires fire underneath to propel the balloon, or an incendiary balloon, or an 

unmanned free floating device capable of producing  an open flame, such as, but not 

limited to, sky lanterns or celebration lanterns, is permitted between the hours of 12:00 

p.m., and 12:00 a.m. on July 2 and 3, from the hours of 12:00 p.m. on July 4 to 2:00 a.m. 

on July 5 of each year, and from the hours of 5:00 p.m. on December 31 to 1:00 a.m. on 

January 1. 

 

By:_________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

 

First Consideration:       October 6, 2015 

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   _____________ 

Publication:       _____________ 
 


	Agenda October 6, 2015
	Minutes September 15, 2015
	Confirmation of Special Assessments
	Confirmation of Special Assessments attachment
	Change Order for Street Imp. D200 Project 2015-09
	DOT Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement - Main & Twin City Dr. Traffic Signal
	MARC appointments recommendations
	Reassessment - Jack & Mary Ann Paul
	Reassessment - Craig Ostafin
	Mandan Moose #425 Sunday Openings - Oct. 11, 2015 & Oct. 25, 2015
	Assignment & Consent Agreement for 112 Second Ave. NW - board doc.
	112 Second Ave. NW Assignment and Consent Agreement
	Inform of approved Change Order No. 3 - Street Impr. D199 (Downtown, East Side SID)
	19th and Hwy. 6 DOT Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement
	Memorial Hwy Traffic Signals (40th and 46th) CPM Agreement
	Lot Splits West Hills Estates
	Final Change Order No. 6 - Thirkettle Corp. for Water Meter Impr. Project
	Budget transfer from 2016 Street Dept. Capital Outlay budget to 2015 budget
	Reassessment Otis Patton Jr.
	Variance - Patience Subdivision
	Visitors Sign RFP overview
	Visitors Sign RFP Draft
	Name Change from Mandan Band Shell to Vern Cermak Band Shell
	Old Red Trail Reconstruction Presentation & Decisions Document
	Old Red Trail Reconstruction Presentation & Decisions attachment
	Ord. 1219 Additions Chap. 18 & 24 Traffic offenses and violations
	Ord. 1221 Renaming Street in Lakewood 8th Addn.
	Ord. 1204 Establishing Requirements for removal of graffiti
	Ord. 1220 Adding Prohibition against use of incendiary balloons, sky lanterns & Celebration lanterns



